
 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 Randy Rowse 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Grant House 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss  
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

MAY 14, 2013 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

5/14/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
 11:00 a.m. - Special Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public 

Meeting Room, 630 Garden Street 
 12:00 p.m. - Special Ordinance Committee Meeting, Council Chamber 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING S 

SPECIAL FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 11:00 A.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD 
PUBLIC MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03)  
 
1. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2013 Third Quarter Review   
 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in 

relation to budget for the nine months ended March 31, 2013;  
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements for the Nine 

Months Ended March 31, 2013; and 
C. Approve the proposed third quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2013 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the attached 
schedule of Proposed Third Quarter Adjustments. 

2. Subject:  Finance Committee Review Of The Proposed Two-Year Financial 
Plan For Fiscal Years 2014 And 2015   

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee hear a report from staff on the 
Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015, including the 
Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2014. 

SPECIAL ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:00 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL 
CHAMBER (120.03) 

Subject:  Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of The Average Unit-
Size Density (AUD) Incentive Program   

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee consider proposed amendments to 
the Municipal Code for implementation of the Average Unit-Size Density Incentive 
Program. 

 
 
 
 



 

5/14/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 

AFTERNOON SESSION 
 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 
 
1. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring May 19-25, 2013, As National Public 

Works Week (120.04) 
 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of April 23, 2013, and the special meetings of May 1 and 2, 
2013. 
  

3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Power Purchase Agreement (380.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a California 
Renewable Energy Small Tariff Agreement with Southern California Edison, Inc., 
for the Purpose of Selling Electricity, Generated at the City’s Conduit 
Hydroelectric Plant, and Authorizing Related Actions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5/14/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
4. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Fire Management Memorandum of 

Understanding (440.02) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council ratify the Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City of Santa Barbara and the Santa Barbara Fire Managers 
Association for the period of July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2015, by adoption of, 
by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara 
Adopting the 2012-2015 Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of 
Santa Barbara and the Santa Barbara Fire Managers Association. 
 
 

5. Subject: Records Destruction For Airport Department (160.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Airport Department in the Administration Division. 
  

6. Subject:  Agreements With Martin & Chapman Company And Donna M. 
Grindey, CMC, For Election Services Related To The November 5, 2013, 
General Municipal Election (110.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Assistant City Administrator to execute a $134,000 

professional services agreement with Martin & Chapman Company for 
election services necessary concerning the City's November 2013 General 
Election, and to approve expenditures of up to $20,100 for extra services 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

B. Authorize the Assistant City Administrator to execute a $30,000 
professional services agreement with Donna M. Grindey, CMC, for 
election services, and to approve expenditures of up to $4,500 for extra 
services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 

7. Subject:  Representative Services Agreement With Carpi & Clay, Inc. 
(570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Waterfront Director to execute a 
Representative Services Agreement between the City of Santa Barbara and 
Carpi & Clay, Inc., doing business as Carpi, Clay & Smith, for liaison and contact 
services with the United States Government, at a rate not to exceed $1,600 per 
month, and in a total amount not to exceed $38,400 for Fiscal Years 2014 and 
2015. 

 



 

5/14/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

8. Subject: Authorization To Award A Purchase Order For The Airport 
Building 247 Demolition Project (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the General Services Manager to 
issue a purchase order with Tryco Contracting Company, in their low bid amount 
of $67,000 for the Airport Building 247 Demolition Project, Bid Number 3692, and 
approve expenditures of up to $6,700 for extra services of Tryco Contracting 
Company that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
  

9. Subject:  Contract For Construction For The Chapala Street Bridge 
Replacement Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Granite Construction Company in their low bid 

amount of $1,411,510 for construction of the Chapala Street Bridge 
Replacement Project, Bid No. 3590; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract in the amount 
of $1,411,510 with Granite Construction Company and approve 
expenditures up to $141,151 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment;  

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with MNS 
Engineers, Incorporated, in the amount of $478,596 for construction 
management services, and approve expenditures of up to $16,404 for 
extra services of MNS Engineers that may result from necessary changes 
in the scope of work;  

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Drake 
Haglan and Associates in the amount of $45,080 for design support 
services during construction; 

E. Accept Federal Highway Administration Grant funding in the total amount 
of $2,188,562 to cover the cost of construction; 

F. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $2,188,562 in the 
Fiscal Year 2013 Streets Capital Fund for the Chapala Street Bridge 
Replacement Project funded by the Federal Highway Administration 
Grant;  

G. Authorize an appropriation of $74,537 from available Streets Fund 
reserves to cover final City costs for the design and right-of-way phases 
as well as to cover the cost of work not eligible for reimbursement during 
the construction phase of this Project; and  

H. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $2,000 in the Fiscal 
Year 2013 Streets Capital Fund for the Chapala Street Bridge 
Replacement Project from revenues from granting Crown Castle a utility 
easement. 



 

5/14/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

10. Subject:  Tax Equity And Fiscal Responsibility Act Hearing for Covenant 
Retirement Communities, Inc. (Samarkand) Debt Issuance  (280.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of 
title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a 
Tax-Exempt Bond Financing to be Issued by the California Statewide 
Communities Development Authority to Benefit Covenant Retirement 
Communities, Inc., and Certain Affiliates. 
  

11. Subject:  Resolution Approving Application For Clean Beaches Initiative 
Grant (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara, Authorizing the Public Works Director to 
Submit a Clean Beaches Initiative Grant Application in an Amount Not to Exceed 
$675,000, and Execute an Agreement with the California State Water Resources 
Control Board Grant Program. 
  

12. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Designation 
Of City Landmarks (640.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council set the date of June 18, 2013, at 2:00 p.m. for a 
public hearing to consider the proposed designation of multiple buildings at El 
Encanto Hotel as a City historic district. 
 

NOTICES 

13. The City Clerk has on Thursday, May 9, 2013, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City 
Hall, and on the Internet. 
 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 

 



 

5/14/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

14. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2013 Third Quarter Review  (250.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in 

relation to budget for the nine months ended March 31, 2013;  
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements for the Nine 

Months Ended March 31, 2013; and 
C. Approve the proposed third quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2013 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the schedule of 
Proposed Third Quarter Adjustments. 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

15. Subject:  Resolution To Place The Exchange Of A Leased Excess Portion 
Of MacKenzie Park On The Municipal Election Ballot In November 2013 
(330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Placement of a Measure 
on the November 2013 General Election Ballot to Obtain Voter Approval to 
Exchange 14,564 Square Feet of MacKenzie Park Property for 12,511 Square 
Feet of the Adjacent U.S. Army Reserve Center Property, as Required by City 
Charter Section 520. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

16. Subject:  Appeal Of The Fire And Police Commission's Sixty (60) Day 
Suspension Of The Nightclub Dance Permit For Whiskey Richards (520.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of William (Bill) Clayton, owner 
of Whiskey Richards nightclub, upholding the Fire and Police Commission's 
decision to suspend the nightclub dance permit for Whiskey Richards for a period 
of 60 days. 
  
 

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 



 

5/14/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 7 

 

CLOSED SESSIONS 

17. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Police Bargaining 
Unit, Supervisors’ Bargaining Unit, and the General Bargaining Unit, and 
regarding discussions with certain unrepresented managers about salaries and 
fringe benefits. 
  

RECESS 

 

 
EVENING SESSION  

EVENING SESSION 
 
RECONVENE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

18. Subject:  Request from Mayor Helene Schneider and Councilmember 
Bendy White for a Gang Injunction Informational Update (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council, as requested by Mayor Schneider and 
Councilmember White, receive an overview and update on the gang injunction. 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



File Code 120.03 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

 

DATE: May 14, 2013 Dale Francisco, Chair 
TIME: 11:00 A.M.  Bendy White  
PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Cathy Murillo 
 630 Garden Street  
 
James L. Armstrong  Robert Samario 
City Administrator Finance Director 

 
 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
1. Subject: Fiscal Year 2013 Third Quarter Review 
 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in relation 

to budget for the nine months ended March 31, 2013;  
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements for the Nine Months 

Ended March 31, 2013; and 
C. Approve the proposed third quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2013 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the schedule of 
Proposed Third Quarter Adjustments. 

   
(See Council Agenda Item No. 14) 

 
 

2. Subject:  Finance Committee Review Of The Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan 
For Fiscal Years 2014 And 2015 

 
Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee hear a report from staff on the 
Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015, including the 
Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2014. 

 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  2 
 
File Code No.  120.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 
 
TO: Finance Committee  
 
FROM: Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Finance Committee Review Of The Proposed Two-Year Financial 

Plan For Fiscal Years 2014 And 2015 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Finance Committee hear a report from staff on the Proposed Two-Year Financial 
Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015, including the Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 
2014. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On Tuesday, April 16, 2013, the Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 
and 2015 (“Proposed Plan”) was submitted to Council. That day, the Finance Committee 
approved its budget review schedule for the Proposed Plan and the additional topics that it 
will review.  
 
At today’s meeting, scheduled from 11:00 a.m. to 1:45 p.m., the topics to be discussed 
are: 

1. Enterprise Fund proposed adjustments to fees. 
2. Long-term impacts of recently approved increases to retirement contribution 

rates, effective July 1, 2015.  
3. Timing of Human Services Funding Decisions 

 
The next date for the Committee’s budget review is Tuesday, May 21, 2013, from 11:00 
a.m. – 1:45 p.m. The complete approved Finance Committee budget review schedule is 
attached to this report.  
 
ATTACHMENT: Approved Finance Committee Budget Review Schedule  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Attachment  

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
Proposed Finance Committee Review Schedule 

Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 
 
Meeting Date and Time Department 
 
Tuesday, April 16, 2013 
12:30 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 Proposed Finance Committee Budget Review 

Schedule 

 
Tuesday, April 30, 2013 
12:30 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 General Fund non-departmental revenues  and 

assumptions  
 

 General Fund Multi-Year Forecast (updated) 
 

 March 31st  Quarterly Investment Report  (non-
budget Item) 

 
Tuesday, May 7, 2013 
11:30 a.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 General Fund departmental proposed fee changes 

 
- Community Development, Public Works, Parks & 

Recreation, Police, Fire and Library  
 

 Proposed sale of Water Fund Revenue Certificates 
of Participation (non-budget Item) 

 
Tuesday, May 14, 2013 
11:00 a.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 Enterprise fund proposed fee changes  

- Water, Wastewater, Waterfront, Solid Waste, 
Downtown Parking, Golf and Airport 

 Impacts of CalPERS retirement contribution rate 
increases starting in fiscal year 2016 

 Discussion of timing of Human Services funding 
decisions 

 Fiscal Year 2013 Third Quarter Review (non-budget 
item) 

 
Tuesday, May 21, 2013 
11:00 a.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 Review of Citywide reserve balances and City Debt 

 
 Recap of unfunded liabilities (OPEB, Pension and 

Infrastructure) 
 
 Understanding how unfunded infrastructure liabilities 

have changed over the last 10-20 years 
 
 Staff recommended adjustments, if any 
 
 Finance Committee decisions/ recommendations 

 



File Code 120.03 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
DATE: May 14, 2013 Grant House, Chair 
TIME:  12:00 p.m. Frank Hotchkiss 
PLACE:  Council Chambers Randy Rowse 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Nina Johnson                                                Stephen P. Wiley 
Assistant to the City Administrator                        City Attorney 
                                                

 
ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 
Subject:  Municipal Code Amendments for Implementation of the Average Unit-Size 
Density (AUD) Incentive Program 
 
Recommendation:  That Ordinance Committee:   
 
Consider proposed amendments to the Municipal Code for implementation of the Average 
Unit-Size Density Incentive Program. 



File Code No.  120.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 
 
TO: Ordinance Committee 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department  
 
SUBJECT: Municipal Code Amendments for Implementation of the Average Unit-

Size Density (AUD) Incentive Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Ordinance Committee consider proposed amendments to the Municipal Code for 
implementation of the Average Unit-Size Density Incentive Program. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The proposed Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) Incentive Program carries out a key 
program directed by the 2011 General Plan.  The Program facilitates the construction of 
smaller housing units by allowing increased density and development standard incentives.  
Housing types that provide housing opportunities to the City’s workforce are encouraged 
and facilitated by the AUD Program. 
 
The AUD Program ordinance amendments will be contained in a new Zoning Ordinance 
Chapter (28.20) to the Municipal Code.  The ordinance amendments establish the 
parameters of the AUD Program, including purpose, definitions, density incentives, 
development incentives, and building height exception findings and process.  The Program 
will be tested for a period of 8-years, or until 250 units are constructed in designated areas 
of the City, whichever occurs sooner.  During the trial period, the existing Variable Density 
Program would be suspended.  If at the end of the trial period (8 years or 250 units), the 
City Council does not extend or modify the AUD Program, the residential density 
standards will return to the standards in place before adoption of the 2011 General Plan.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The AUD Program is directed by General Plan policies in the Land Use and Housing 
Elements.  The Program is designed to encourage smaller units through the application 
of increased densities based on average unit sizes.  The smaller the average unit size, 
the greater the densities allowed within the three designated density tiers: Medium-
High, High, and Priority Housing Overlay.  Increased densities would be allowed in most 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments for Implementation of the Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) 
Incentive Program  
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 

 

multi-family and commercial zones under the Medium-High and High Density land use 
designations.  Additional densities would be allowed for priority housing projects (i.e., 
rental, employer sponsored housing, and limited equity housing cooperatives) located in 
the Priority Housing Overlay area.  The overlay applies in the High Density areas and C-
M zoned properties located in the Haley/Cota corridor, as shown in the Average Unit-
Size Density Incentive Program Map (Attachment 1, Exhibit A).  
 
The AUD Program also allows reduction and/or flexibility in parking, setback, open 
space, distance between buildings and building height standards.  These incentives are 
proposed to encourage development of smaller units and buildings, with particular 
emphasis on priority housing. 
 
On April 10, 2012, the City Council initiated the Zoning Ordinance amendments to 
implement the AUD Program.  Following adoption of the ordinance amendments, the 
AUD Program will be in effect for eight years, or until 250 units have been constructed 
in the High Density areas and applicable C-M zoned properties, whichever occurs 
sooner. 
   
The existing Variable Density Program provisions would be suspended during the AUD 
Program trial period.  Prior to the end of the 8-year trial period, the Council will consider 
whether to extend or modify the Program.  If the Program is not extended or modified, 
the residential density will revert back to the Variable Density standards in place prior to 
adoption of the 2011 General Plan Update.   
 
To further develop the AUD Program components, Staff sought feedback and direction 
from the Planning Commission, Design Review Boards, a technical advisory group of 
community members, and the public.  In addition, a community forum was held with 
employers, developers and lenders to identify ways to create a viable and successful 
Employers Sponsored Housing Program. 
 
On April 11, 2013, the Planning Commission reviewed the draft AUD Program 
Ordinance and unanimously voted to forward the ordinance with revisions to the Council 
Ordinance Committee for consideration (Attachment 2).  The discussion below 
highlights the key comments and direction provided by the Planning Commission.  
 
Housing Types 
 
A primary goal of the 2011 General Plan is to encourage the construction of housing 
that is more affordable to the City’s workforce, with special emphasis on priority 
housing.  This type of housing is considered a community benefit land use and is 
supported by numerous policies and programs in both the Land Use and Housing 
Elements, directing the implementation of the AUD Program.   
 
The Planning Commission supports the basic premise of the AUD Program to allow 
higher densities in exchange for smaller units, especially for units intended to house the 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments for Implementation of the Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) 
Incentive Program  
May 14, 2013 
Page 3 

 

City’s workforce.  While the Commission agrees with the parameters of the priority 
housing types, they recommended that the ordinance be clearer regarding the employer 
sponsored housing requirement that at least one person per household be employed in 
the south coast region of Santa Barbara County and that the units be restricted to 
primary residences.  The Planning Commission also requested that language be added 
to the ordinance explicitly stating that employer sponsored housing projects offering 
market rate ownership units would not be subject to the City’s inclusionary housing 
requirements. 
 
Inclusionary units would continue to be required for market rate ownership units 
(excluding employer sponsored housing) developed under the AUD.  This requirement 
promotes the City’s goal of adding affordable housing units to the housing stock, as well 
as increasing the availability of units for middle and upper middle income households.  
Most Commissioners agreed with this requirement; however two Commissioners felt 
that imposing this provision on market rate housing developed under the AUD Program 
would increase the unit cost if the market rate housing were reduced by the inclusionary 
units.  Also of concern was that counting inclusionary units would distort the 250 unit 
test results. 
 
Unit Size 
 
As part of the 2011 General Plan adoption, the City Council approved density ranges for 
the Medium-High (15-27 du/ac), and High Density (28-36 du/ac) designations, as well 
as the Priority Housing Overlay (37-63 du/ac).  The corresponding maximum average 
unit size for each density tier was later finalized by Staff with assistance from a technical 
advisory group.  Subsequently, the unit size ranges were presented to the Planning 
Commission, Architectural Board of Review and Historic Landmarks Commission. 
 
On April 11, 2013, the majority of the Planning Commission found that the maximum 
average unit size ranges were reasonable and appropriate.  However, two 
Commissioners felt that the maximum average unit size range (805 SF to 1,450 SF) for 
the Medium-High density tier should be larger and suggested an increase from .50 FAR 
to .65 FAR to improve the marketability of these units.   
 
Development Standards 
 
Policies contained in the Housing Element promote more flexibility in development 
standards to encourage and facilitate the construction of additional housing.  In support 
of these policies, the AUD Program offers incentives and/or flexibility in the application 
of development standards related to parking, setbacks, open space, distance between 
buildings and building height.  On April 11, 2013, the Planning Commission reviewed 
and accepted the proposed AUD Program development incentives with recommended 
revisions as described below.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments for Implementation of the Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) 
Incentive Program  
May 14, 2013 
Page 4 

 

Parking Requirements 
 
During the 2011 General Plan adoption, the City Council determined the parking 
requirement for AUD projects to be one parking space per unit and no requirement to 
provide guest parking.  The AUD Program ordinance reflects the Council’s direction.  
Please note that projects may choose to provide more than one parking space per 
residential unit; however, the reduction in parking is intended to assist with unit 
affordability as well as help decrease building mass.  The Planning Commission did not 
recommend changes to this requirement. 
 
Setback Requirements 
 
The setback requirements for AUD projects are intended to provide more flexibility, 
especially for 100% residential projects developed in commercial zones.  Initially, the 
AUD Program ordinance included a provision to implement a 5’ variable front setback 
for AUD mixed use projects developed in the C-2 and C-M zone districts (excluding 
State Street and first blocks of cross streets between Montecito and Sola Streets).  
Exclusively residential projects would apply the R-3/R-4 setback standards of the AUD 
Program ordinance.  At the Planning Commission hearing of April 11, 2013, public 
comment was received from Santa Barbara for All (SB4All) requesting that development 
incentives related to front setbacks in commercial zones be applied similarly to mixed 
use and exclusively residential projects in order to incentivize residential units rather 
than commercial space (Attachment 3).  The following describes SB4All’s proposal: 
 
 C-2 and C-M Zones:  SB4All’s proposal would require a 10’ variable front setback 

for exclusively residential buildings or structures in the C-2 and C-M zones where 
ground floor residential units face the public street.  Additionally, a variable front 
setback of 5’ would apply for other uses within the structure (e.g., community 
center, parking structure).  This would continue to allow community rooms, 
administrative office and parking garages associated with the residential use to 
meet the mixed use 5’ variable setback requirement.   

 All Other Zones:  Similar to the C-2 and C-M front setback proposal described 
above, exclusively residential projects developed in HRC-2, R-O, C-P, C-L, C-1, 
and OC zones would apply a 10’ variable setback for ground floor residential units 
facing the street.  All other nonresidential uses associated with the residential use 
would apply a 5’ variable setback. 

 
The Planning Commission agreed with SB4All’s proposal that both mixed use and 
exclusively residential projects in commercial zones should be further encouraged by 
requiring the same setback incentives.  Staff concurs with the spirit of this approach, 
and proposes setback requirements for mixed use and exclusively residential projects in 
applicable commercial zones (R-O, C-P, C-L, C-1, C-2, C-M,) allow a 5’ variable front 
setback.  This helps to simplify the ordinance and provide uniformity in the application of 
setback requirements for all AUD projects developed in commercial zones.  The HRC-2 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments for Implementation of the Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) 
Incentive Program  
May 14, 2013 
Page 5 

 

and OC zones would continue to apply setback standards required by their respective 
zone until the Coastal Zone Map Amendment is completed.   
 
Open Space Requirements 
 
There are two methods of applying outdoor living space requirements to multi-family or 
mixed use projects.  Projects have the option of selecting one of the following methods: 
 
1. Method A, Private Outdoor Living Space Method:  Project’s electing this method are 

required to provide the following: 
 A private outdoor living space for each dwelling unit (with specific requirements); 
 An on-grade open space area of not less than 10% of the net lot area; and  
 A common open area with minimum dimensions of 15’ x 15’. 

 
Staff initially recommended eliminating the 10% open space requirement for mixed use 
projects developing under the AUD Program.  Exclusively residential AUD projects 
developed in commercial zones would be required to provide the 10% open space 
consistent with the R-3/R-4 standards.  In an effort to further encourage 100% 
residential AUD projects in commercial zones, the Planning Commission supported 
SB4All’s proposal to apply equivalent open space incentives to all AUD projects 
developed in commercial zones.  This incentive will provide flexibility in project design, 
thus facilitating additional residential units as part of the project.  Staff believes that 
offering this incentive is reasonable in order to gain additional affordable and workforce 
units. 
 
2. Method B, Common Outdoor Living Space Method:  Projects electing this method 

are required to provide a common outdoor living space of at least 15% of the net lot 
area, subject to the following: 
 The area must be on-grade; 
 The area may be provided on multiple locations; 
 At least one location must be a dimension of 20’ x 20’; and  
 The area may include the interior and rear setbacks, but not the front yard. 

 
Applying this method has been problematic for projects, especially those proposing at-
grade parking garages.  To accommodate the 15% common outdoor living space 
requirement on the ground projects must decrease floor area, which could result in 
fewer residential units.  Staff proposes allowing the 15% common outdoor living space 
at grade or any floor of the building to help make possible more units in a project.  In 
addition, AUD projects located within ¼ mile from a park may reduce the common 
outdoor living space requirement to 10%.  The Planning Commission concurred with 
this reduction and further recommended that these incentives be applied to all AUD 
projects developed in commercial zones. 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments for Implementation of the Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) 
Incentive Program  
May 14, 2013 
Page 6 

 

 
Building Heights/Findings/Process 
 
Implementation Action LG12.4 of the General Plan Land Use Element calls for special 
findings and a super majority (five affirmative votes) approval by the Planning 
Commission for Community Benefit projects that exceed 45’ in height.  To implement 
LG12.4, amendments to the C-2, C-M, M-1, and OM-1 zoning districts are proposed 
limiting building height to 45’ or less unless the project is a Community Benefit project.  
Currently, these zones allow four stories, not to exceed 60’ in height.   
 
The Planning Commission would be the responsible body for reviewing and approving 
Community Benefit building heights exceeding 45’.  The draft ordinance provides that a 
super majority vote and findings related to demonstrated need, architecture and design, 
livability, and sensitivity to context are required to approve these buildings.  Building 
height decisions made by the Planning Commission would not be appealable to the City 
Council. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the process for building height exceptions and 
expressed concern regarding the super majority vote and the inability to appeal their 
decision to the City Council.  During an informal straw vote, the Commission was split 
(3/3) that a super majority vote be required to approve building heights above 45’.  
Concern was voiced that this requirement is problematic when five affirmative votes are 
required and only four commissioners are present making it necessary to continue the 
item.  Additionally, a majority of the Commission (4/2) was concerned with the provision 
that building height decisions would not be appealable to the City Council, stating that 
applicants should have the right to appeal this decision. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff requests that the Committee review and comment on the policy basis for the 
ordinance as outlined above.  The City Attorney will finalize the drafting of the ordinance 
to be considered at a subsequent Ordinance Committee meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Planning Commission Staff Report, April 11, 2013 
 2. Planning Commission Minutes & Resolution, April 11, 2013 
 3. Letter from Santa Barbara for All, April 10, 2013 
 
PREPARED BY: Irma Unzueta, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator/Community 

Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



ATTACHMENT 1















Planning Commission Staff Report 
Average Unit-Size Density Incentive Program Zoning Ordinance Amendments  
April 4, 2013 
Page 8 
 
NEXT STEPS 

a. Planning Commission Review/Recommendation (April 11, 2013) 
b. Council Ordinance Committee Review (May/June 2013) 
c. Council Introduction and Adoption (June/July 2013) 

Exhibits: 

A. Average Unit-Size Density Incentive Program Map 
B. Employer Sponsored Housing Forum Discussion Summary and Forum Flyer 
C. Draft AUD Program Ordinance  Refer to Ordinance included in CAR, 5/14/13 
D. AUD Program Density Table 















 

EXHIBIT C 

 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit C:  Prior Draft of AUD Program Ordinance from Planning Commission 

Staff Report dated with Agenda date, April 11, 2013, is omitted. 
 
 





ATTACHMENT 2













 

 

 

www.sb4all.org 
 
 

 

April 10, 2013 
 
Honorable Planning Commission Members 
City of Santa Barbara  
735 Anacapa Street 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 
Via email 
 
Re: Proposed Average Unit Density Incentive Program 
 
Honorable Planning Commission Members, 
   
Santa Barbara For All (SB4ALL), a coalition of citizens and civic groups, has been involved in Plan 
Santa Barbara since 2007 advocating for policies and implementation strategies that will ensure 
a sustainable and healthy future for our community, affordable housing for our local workforce, 
and protection of Santa Barbara’s historic and environmental resources.   
 
SB4ALL endorsed the original concept of PlanSB developed to improve the jobs/housing 
balance; to reduce long distance commuting and its associated air pollution, energy use and 
regional traffic; and to effectively reduce motor vehicle trips.  While this document has 
undergone many changes in the adoption process, the concept of directing future growth 
towards the urban center and adjacent neighborhoods – as opposed to further development of 
foothills and outer City edges – has remained the core of the Plan.  
 
Overall we are very supportive of the Draft AUD Program.  We do, however, have a few 
comments that we believe will make the program more flexible and successful in achieving its 
goal – to produce a greater number of housing that is affordable to the workforce.   
 
We respectfully submit the following comments: 
 

1. Setbacks in the Commercial Zone District:  Staff is recommending that mixed use project 
be required to provide a variable 5 foot front setback because of the inclusion of 
residential uses.  The proposed AUD program would require exclusively residential 
projects in commercial zone districts to meet the R-3/R-4 setback requirements.  

ATTACHMENT 3



www.sb4all.org 
 

Historically, residential projects in commercial zones that wanted greater setback 
flexibility, would add a small office or commercial space and this would afford them the 
commercial setback standards – in most cases zero.  This is not necessarily a desirable 
outcome – particularly if this program is designed to incentivize residential units rather 
than commercial space.  Thus, we recommend that exclusively residential projects in 
commercial zone districts be required to provide the same setbacks as mixed use 
projects with the following exception:  a 10 foot variable setback would be provided 
where ground floor residential units face the public street.  This proposal is designed to 
allow community rooms/administrative offices and parking garages to meet the mixed 
use setback, while also ensuring that there is adequate space between the public realm 
and the ground floor units.   

 
By revising this language, residential projects would be less likely to add unwanted 
commercial space to avoid setback requirements.  In addition, a comfortable setback 
would be provided for residential uses, unnecessarily large setbacks would not be 
required for non-residential uses, and the variability of the setback would provide 
design flexibility.     

 
2. Outdoor Living Space:  Staff is recommending changes to the Outdoor Living Space 

requirements for mixed use projects to create incentives.  For example, a mixed use 
project that uses the Private Outdoor Living Space method would not be required to 
provide 10% open space.  We suggest that the incentives provided for mixed use 
projects also be provided to exclusively residential projects in commercial zone districts.  
Like the setback issue discussed above, if this incentive is limited to mixed use projects it 
could also compels applicants to add unwanted or unneeded commercial space to take 
advantage of the incentive.  Again, if the goal of the AUD program is to create a greater 
number of residential units we believe they should be able to avail themselves of a 
similar incentive package.   

 
3. Building Height:  The proposed AUD program includes an exemption to the 45 foot 

height limitation imposed by the new General Plan for Community Benefit projects and 
Community Benefit Housing projects where the Planning Commission can make a series 
of findings with a super majority vote (five votes).  As stated now, the exemption cannot 
be extended for “purely financial reasons”.  We are concerned about this limitation.   
The very purpose of the Design Charrette, which was the genesis of the experimental 
AUD program, was to demonstrate what type of projects would be financially feasible.  
This restriction could be problematic for future Community Benefit Housing projects.  
For example, if a strict 45 foot height limit makes an apartment project financially 
infeasible this would seem to be counterproductive to one of the key goals of the 
program – providing more rental housing stock.  A project that exceeds the 45 foot 
height requirement by a few feet would still need to be reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Commission (5 votes) and would still be required to undergo design review.  As 
such, we believe that the mechanisms are in place to provide rigorous oversight of this 



www.sb4all.org 
 

exemption.  We recommend that the findings be revised to allow financial infeasibility 
to be a valid reason to increase the height of a Community Benefit Housing project.  

 
The citizens and civic groups that constitute SB4ALL appreciate the opportunity to help shape 
the AUD program.  We all share the same goal of developing a successful program that will 
produce a variety of affordable housing opportunities for our workforce.    
 
We’ve attached our suggested revisions to the draft AUD program.   
 
 
Sincerely,  

   
Lisa Plowman      Detlev Peikert 
 
Attachment 1:   Proposed Policy Revisions 
 
XC: Bettie Weiss, City Planner 



Section 28.20.070 Development Incentives 

B. Setbacks (Pages 12-14) 

1.  C-2 and C-M Zones 

a. Front Setback 

iii.  Lots Developed Exclusively with Residential Uses.  Any lot developed exclusively with 

residential buildings or structures shall provide the R-3/R-4 setback distance as required by 

Section 28.20.070. B.2. of this chapter   observe the following setback:  A front setback of ten 

(10) feet shall be provided where residential units face the public right of way.  A front setback 

of five (5) feet shall be provided for other uses within the structure (e.g. community center, 

parking garage).   A portion of a structure may be located within the required front setback 

provided the footprint area of the portion of the structure that intrudes into the required front 

setback is compensated by an equal or greater area that is not covered by any building or 

structure outside of and adjacent to the same front setback and the setback line.  The 

compensating area shall not be located farther from the adjacent front lot line than one half of 

the length of the front lot line.   

3.  All other Zones   

b.  Lots Developed Exclusively with Residential Uses.  Any lot developed exclusively with 

residential buildings or structures shall provide the R-3/R-4 setback distance as required by 

Section 28.20.070. B.2. of this chapter   observe the following setback:  A front setback of ten 

(10) feet shall be provided where residential units face the public right of way.  A front setback 

of five (5) feet shall be provided for other uses within the structure (e.g. community center, 

parking garage).   A portion of a structure may be located within the required front setback 

provided the footprint area of the portion of the structure that intrudes into the required front 

setback is compensated by an equal or greater area that is not covered by any building or 

structure outside of and adjacent to the same front setback and the setback line.  The 

compensating area shall not be located farther from the adjacent front lot line than one half of 

the length of the front lot line.    

E.  Outdoor Living Space. (Pages 17 and 18) 

1. Mixed use projects or exclusively residential projects in commercial zone districts electing to 

provide outdoor living space pursuant to the private Outdoor Living Space Method specified in 



Subsection A of Section 28.21.081 are required to provide the Private Outdoor Living Space as 

specified in Section 28.21.081.A.1 and the Common Open Area Section 28.21.081.A.3.  Mixed 

use projects or exclusively residential projects in commercial zone districts developed under the 

Average Unit-Size Density Incentive Program that elect to provide outdoor living space pursuant 

to the Private Outdoor Living Space Method may, but are not required to, provide the Open 

Space specified in Section 28.21.081.A.2. 

2. Mixed use projects or exclusively residential projects in commercial zone districts electing to 

provide outdoor living space pursuant to the Common Outdoor Living Space Method specified in 

Subsection B; however, if the lot is located within one quarter (1/4) mile of a park, the project 

may reduce the fifteen percent (15%) common outdoor living space requirement to ten percent 

(10%) of the net lot area.  In addition, for projects developed in accordance with the Average 

Unit-Size Density Incentive Program, the required common outdoor living space may be located 

at grade or on any floor of the building(s), amending Section 28.21.081.B.4.  

 

Section 28.66.050 Building Height 

B. Community Benefit Projects 

1. Demonstrated Need.  The application has demonstrated a need for the project to exceed 45 feet in 

building height that is related to the project’s benefit to the community, due to site constraints, or 

desired architectural qualities, as opposed to a purely financial justification or financial feasibility. 

 





05/2/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
May 2, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Schneider. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco (1:04 p.m.), Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House 
(1:05 p.m.), Cathy Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White (1:06 p.m.), Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
City Clerk Services Manager Gwen Peirce. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak.  
 
NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk has on Thursday, April 25, 2013, posted this agenda in the Office of the 
City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, and 
on the Internet. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

Subject:  Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan For Fiscal Years 2014 And 2015 (230.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hear presentations from the Community Development 
and Library departments on their recommended budgets as contained in the Proposed 
Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015.                                    (Cont’d) 

MAY 14 2013 #2 



05/2/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

Subject:  Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan For Fiscal Years 2014 And 2015 (Cont’d) 
 

Documents: 
      - May 2, 2013, report from the Finance Director. 
      - May 2, 2013, PowerPoint presentations prepared and made by Staff. 
 
Public Comment Opened (Continued from May 1, 2013): 

1:02 p.m. 
 
Speakers: 
      -  Staff:  Assistant City Administrator Paul Casey, Community Development 

Business Manager Sue Gray, City Planner Bettie Weiss. 
- Single Family Design Board:  Members Brian Miller and Paul Zink. 
- Santa Barbara County Arts Commission:  Director Ginny Brush. 

 
Discussion: 

Community Development Business Manager Sue Gray presented an overview of 
the Community Department’s organization, staffing, proposed budget changes, 
including fee increases and additional requests for funding.  City Planner Bettie 
Weiss spoke regarding a proposed Zoning Ordinance Update that is scheduled 
to be completed over the next three years. Ms. Gray also spoke regarding key 
performance objectives for Fiscal Year 2014 for Planning, Building & Safety, 
Administration & Community Development and Rental Housing Mediation.  Ms. 
Gray provided information on revenues, expenditures and key objectives for 
Fiscal Year 2014 for the Redevelopment Agency Retirement Obligation Fund, 
Affordable Housing Fund, HOME and Community Development Block Grant 
Funds. Staff responded to the Councilmembers’ questions.   

 
Speakers: 
      -  Staff:  Library Director Irene Macias, Library Services Manager Scott Love, 

Library Services Manager Margaret Esther. 
- Members of the Public:  Bessie Condos; Susan Shields; Deborah Pontifex, 

Friends of the Santa Barbara Public Library. 
 

Library Director Irene Macias presented an overview of the Library’s 
organization, statistics and benchmarks.  Library Services Manager Scott Love 
presented the Library’s General Fund budget, detailing programs, key revenue 
and fee changes, capital improvement projects, and Fiscal Year 2014 key 
objectives.  Library Services Manager Margaret Esther made a presentation on 
the County Library Fund, describing programs, funding sources, proposed 
budget and program changes, and Fiscal Year 2014 key objectives.  Ms. Macias 
then presented Fiscal Year 2013 accomplishments and outlined the 
Department’s requests for unfunded service enhancements.  Staff responded to 
the Councilmembers’ questions. 
 

By consensus, the hearing was continued to May 6, 2013, at 2:00 p.m.   



05/2/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 2:36 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  GWEN PEIRCE, CMC 
MAYOR  CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 
 



04/23/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
April 23, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Randy Rowse called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m. (The 
Ordinance Committee met at 12:30 p.m., and the Finance Committee, which ordinarily 
meets at 12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Rowse.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Cathy 
Murillo, Bendy White, Mayor Pro Tempore Rowse. 
Councilmembers absent:  Mayor Helene Schneider. 
Staff present:  Acting City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
Deputy City Clerk Deborah L. Applegate. 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 
 
1. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring April 21-27,  2013 As National Crime 

Victim's Rights Week 
 
Action:  Proclamation was read. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAY 14 2013 #2 



04/23/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 
 
 

 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
Item Removed from Agenda 
 
Acting City Administrator Paul Casey stated that the following item was being removed 
from the agenda:  

10. Subject:  Contract For Construction Management Services For The Punta 
Gorda Street Bridge Replacement Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 

Services contract with Filippin Engineering in the amount of $330,674 for 
construction management support services for the Punta Gorda Street 
Bridge Replacement Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to 
approve expenditures of up to $33,067 for extra services that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Penfield & Smith in the amount of $13,060 for 
engineering (design) support services for Lower Sycamore Creek Channel 
Widening, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $1,306 for extra services that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work; 

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Drake Haglan and Associates in the amount of 
$50,000 for engineering (design) support services for the Punta Gorda 
Street Bridge Replacement Project, and authorize the Public Works 
Director to approve expenditures of up to $5,000 for extra services that 
may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Cardno ENTRIX in the amount of $90,881 for 
environmental coordination and biological monitoring services for the 
Punta Gorda Street Bridge Replacement Project, and authorize the Public 
Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $9,088 for extra services 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Mike Jordan; Ottto Layman; Steve Price; K8 Longstory SOS Advocacy 
Group. 
 
 
 
 
 



04/23/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 
 
 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2 – 8) 
 
The titles of the resolutions and ordinances related to Consent Calendar items were 
read. 
 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers  House/Hotchkiss  to approve the Consent Calendar as 

recommended. 
 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote (Absent:  Mayor Schneider). 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of April 9, 2013. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 
  

3. Subject:  Records Destruction For Public Works Department (160.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Public Works Department in the Fleet Management Division. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 13-021 (April 23, 2013, 
report from the Public Works Director; proposed resolution). 

4. Subject:   Adoption Of Ordinance For Granting Of Easements On City 
Property At Chapala And Yanonali Streets (330.03) 
Recommendation:  That Council Adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Granting of Easements 
for Public Utilities In and Under the City-Owned Property at Chapala and 
Yanonali Streets. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5617; Agreement Nos. 
24,485 – 24,488. 
  

5. Subject:  Parma Park Trust Funds For The Maintenance Of Parma Park 
(570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council increase appropriations and estimated revenues 
by $73,529 in the Parks and Recreation Department Fiscal Year 2013 
Miscellaneous Grants Fund for maintenance of Parma Park. 
  



04/23/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 
 
 

 

Action:  Approved the recommendation (April 23, 2013, report from the Parks and 
Recreation Director). 

6. Subject:  Award Of Professional Services Agreement For Document 
Printing And Mailing Services To Infosend, Inc.  (210.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Finance Director to execute a 
professional services agreement with InfoSend, Inc. for a term of three years with 
an optional two-year extension as additional one (1) year increments. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 24,482 (April 23, 2013, 
report from the Finance Director). 
 

7. Subject:  Appropriation Of Asset Forfeiture Funds For The Council On 
Alcoholism And Drug Abuse Criminal Justice Early Identification Specialist 
Position And "Kids Fight Drugs" Calendar (210.01) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council increase appropriations and estimated revenues 
by $52,000 in the Fiscal Year 2013 Police Department Police Asset Forfeiture 
and Grants Fund for continued funding for the Council on Alcoholism and Drug 
Abuse (CADA) Criminal Justice Early Identification Specialist position ($47,000) 
and the City of Santa Barbara's share of the cost for the "Kids Fight Drugs" 
calendar ($5,000). 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (April 23, 2013, report from the Police 
Chief). 
 

NOTICES 
 
8. The City Clerk has on Thursday, April 18, 2013, posted this agenda in the Office 

of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Ordinance Committee Chair Grant House reported that the Committee received a 
presentation from staff regarding the status of the Environmental Impact Report 
prepared by BEACON for the model draft Single-Use Bag Ordinance. The draft City 
Single-Use Bag Ordinance will be referred to the entire Council at a future meeting.   
 
 
 
 



04/23/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 
 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

9. Subject:  Recommendation To Conduct Vote-By-Mail General Municipal 
Election (110.03) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Clerk to conduct the 
November 5, 2013 General Municipal Election as a Vote-By-Mail Election. 
 
Documents: 

- April 23, 2013, report from the Assistant City Administrator. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and presented by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

 Staff:  City Clerk Services Manager Gwen Peirce. 
 

Motion: 
  Councilmembers White/House to approve the staff recommendation with 

additional direction to Staff to:  1) open City Hall on the Saturday prior to 
Election Day, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., as a ballot drop 
off location; and 2) return to Council with a recommendation for an 
additional drop off center to be located on the City’s westside.  

Vote: 
  Unanimous roll call vote. 

  
RECESS 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Rowse recessed the meeting at 2:50 p.m. in order for the Council 
to reconvene in closed session for Agenda Item Nos. 12 and 13, with no reportable 
action anticipated. 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 
 
12. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation  (160.03) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  Pending litigation considered is a 
workers' compensation claim: David Gomez v. City of Santa Barbara, WCAB 
case numbers ADJ1197775, ADJ1136460 & ADJ1982772. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

  
(Cont’d) 



04/23/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 
 
 

 

12. (Cont’d) 
 
 Documents: 
  April 23, 2013, report from the Finance Director. 
 
 Time: 
  2:50 p.m. – 3:07 p.m. 
 
 No report made. 
 
13. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation  (160.03) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed. Pending litigation considered is a 
workers' compensation claim: Michael Moses v. City of Santa Barbara, WCAB 
case number ADJ7552390. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

 
 Documents: 
  April 23, 2013, report from the Finance Director. 
 
 Time: 
  3:07 p.m. – 3:15 p.m. 
 
 No report made. 
 
RECESS  
 
3:15 p.m. – 3:31 p.m.  Mayor Schneider was present when the Council reconvened. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



04/23/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 
 
 

 

 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

11. Subject:  Contract For Conceptual Design Of The Union Pacific Railroad 
Bridge Over Cabrillo Boulevard (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the City Administrator to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding, approved as to form by the City Attorney, with the Santa 
Barbara County Association of Governments for the Conceptual Design of 
the Union Pacific Railroad Bridge over Cabrillo Boulevard;  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with HDR Engineering, Inc., in the amount of $90,085, in 
a form of agreement approved by the City Attorney, for conceptual design 
services for the Union Pacific Railroad Bridge over Cabrillo Boulevard, and 
authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to 
$9,000 for extra services of HDR Engineering, Inc., that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the Streets Capital 
Fund by $99,105 for the Conceptual Design of the Union Pacific Railroad 
Bridge over Cabrillo Boulevard funded from a payment from the Santa 
Barbara County Association of Governments. 

 
Documents: 

 - April 23, 2013, report from the Public Works Director. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff.                     
 

Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer Pat Kelly, Principal 

Transportation Planner Rob Dayton. 
 - Santa Barbara County of Association of Governments:  Fred Luna. 
 

Motion: 
  Councilmembers House/Rowse to approve the recommendations; 

Agreement Nos. 24,483 and 24,484. 
Vote: 
  Unanimous voice vote. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



04/23/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 
 
 

 

 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
 - Mayor Schneider commended the Community Environmental Council and 

everyone involved in sponsoring Earth Day, which drew over 35,000 visitors to 
the festival. She also reported on her attendance at Santa Barbara’s Founding 
Day celebration, sponsored by the Santa Barbara Trust for Historic Preservation, 
where they honored the founding of the Presidio 231 years ago. 

 - Councilmember Rowse reported on the recent Downtown Parking Committee 
meeting he attended; the Committee will be presenting their budget to the 
Council for ratification in the near future.  

 - Councilmember Murillo reported on her attendance at a luncheon sponsored by 
the Santa Barbara Lodging and Restaurant Association.  The presentation 
focused on new laws and legislation pertaining to the restaurant and hotel 
industry. 

 - Councilmember House reported on presentation by the Beach Erosion Authority 
for Clean Oceans and Nourishment (BEACON) to the Ordinance Committee 
regarding the Environmental Impact Report for the proposed Single-Use Bag 
Ordinance.  

 - Councilmember Hotchkiss reported that the Arts Commission Symposium was 
being held this Friday, April 26, 2013, at the Canary Hotel; he also spoke about 
his attendance at the Arts Advisory Committee meeting.  

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 4:04 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:_______________________________ 
HELENE SCHNEIDER  DEBORAH L. APPLEGATE 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 
 
 
   
RANDY ROWSE   
MAYOR PRO TEMPORE   



05/1/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 1, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Cathy 
Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, Deputy City Clerk Deborah L. 
Applegate. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk has on Thursday, April 25, 2013, posted this agenda in the Office of the 
City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, and 
on the Internet. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
  
 
 

     MAY 14 2013 #2 



05/1/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 
 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

Subject:  Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan For Fiscal Years 2014 And 2015 
(230.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hear presentations from several General Fund 
departments on their recommended budgets as contained in the Proposed Two-Year 
Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015.  
 
Documents: 
 - May 1, 2013, report from the Finance Director. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 
Speakers:   
 - Staff:  Finance Director Robert Samario, City Administrator James Armstrong, 

Assistant to City Administrator Nina Johnson, Assistant City 
Administrator/Administrative Services Director Marcelo Lopez, Human 
Resources Manager Barbara Barker, Information Systems Manager Tom 
Doolittle, Accounting Manager Julie Nemes, Risk Manager Mark Howard. 

 - Santa Barbara Chamber of Commerce:  President Zoe J. Taylor. 
 
Discussion: 
  Assistant to City Administrator Nina Johnson presented a recommended budget 

for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 for the City Administrator’s and Mayor and Council’s 
Offices.  Assistant City Administrator/Administrative Services Director Marcelo 
Lopez, Information Systems Manager Tom Doolittle, and Human Resources 
Manager Barbara Barker presented a recommended budget for Fiscal Year 
2014-2015 for the Administrative Services Department.  Finance Director Robert 
Samario and Accounting Manager Julie Nemes presented a recommended 
budget for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 for the Finance Department.    
  

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 4:44 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  DEBORAH L. APPLEGATE 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  



 1 MAY 14 2013 #3 
380.01 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. _________________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
CALIFORNIA RENEWABLE ENERGY SMALL TARIFF 
AGREEMENT WITH SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON, INC., 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF SELLING ELECTRICITY GENERATED 
AT THE CITY’S CONDUIT HYDROELECTRIC PLANT, AND 
AUTHORIZING RELATED ACTIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the City received United States Bureau of Reclamation License and 
Agreement No. 20-07-20-L2148 (City Agreement No. 11,539), dated July 15, 1982, 
which permitted the construction, operation and maintenance of the City’s Hydroelectric 
Plant on United States land adjacent to Lauro Reservoir; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s hydroelectric plant produced clean, renewable power from 1985 
through 1998; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City decommissioned the hydroelectric plant in 1998, when it was 
determined that project operation, maintenance, permit, and regulatory costs exceeded 
project revenues; and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 2, 2010, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 10-086 to 
demonstrate the City’s desire to resume operations at the hydroelectric plant, and to 
demonstrate intent by Council to accept ownership of the underlying land, if conveyed to 
the City by Reclamation; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented with the form of a California 
Renewable Energy Small Tariff Agreement, and the City Council has examined and 
approved such document and desires to authorize and direct the execution of such 
documents, subject to minor changes; and 

WHEREAS, on October 17, 2012, City staff filed an application for a California 
Renewable Energy Small Tariff Agreement with Southern California Edison, Inc., for the 
Purpose of Selling the City’s Hydroelectric Conduit Plant Power; 
 
WHEREAS, on January 7, 2013, the U.S. General Services Administration (GSA) 
issued a Notice that it had determined the land beneath the City’s hydroelectric plant “to 
be Government surplus and available for disposal”; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2013, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 13-015 
Authorizing Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director, to Act on Behalf of the City in 
the Negotiated Purchase of the Real Property Beneath the City’s Hydroelectric Plant 
and Verifies that Funds Have Been Budgeted for the Purchase, which will be based 
upon an Appraisal by a State Certified Appraiser; and 
 
 



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City of 
Santa Barbara, that certain agreement between the City of Santa Barbara and Southern 
California Edison, Inc., which provides for the sale of power from the City’s 
Hydroelectric Conduit Power Plant for a period of 20 years, is hereby approved. 

Section 2.  The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and 
severally, to do any and all things which they may deem necessary or advisable in order 
to consummate the agreement herein authorized and otherwise to carry out the terms 
and intent of this Ordinance.  

Section 3.  All actions heretofore taken by the officers, employees and agents of the 
City with respect to the agreement set forth above are hereby approved, confirmed and 
ratified. 

Section 4.  The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this 
Ordinance.  The City Council hereby orders that, in lieu of the publication of this 
Ordinance, once in the official newspaper of the City within 15 days after its adoption, 
this Ordinance shall be published by title only once in the official newspaper of the City 
within 15 days after its adoption, provided that the full text shall be available to the 
public at the City Clerk’s Office, and such publication by title only shall so state.  This 
Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from and after the date of its adoption. 



 

  

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK 

I, Gwendolynn B. Peirce, City Clerk Services Manager of the City of Santa Barbara, do 
hereby certify as follows: 

That the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. ___, which was duly 
introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara duly and 
regularly and legally held at the regular meeting place thereof on April 9, 2013, of which 
meeting all of the members of the City Council of said City had due notice and at which a 
quorum was present, and which was thereafter duly adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara duly and regularly and legally held at 
the regular meeting place thereof on April __, 2013, of which meeting all of the members of the 
City Council of said City had due notice and at which a quorum was present. 

That an agenda of each of said meetings was posted at least 72 hours before said meeting 
at 740 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, California, a location freely accessible to members of the 
public, and a brief description of said Ordinance appeared on said agenda. 

That I have carefully compared the foregoing copy with the original minutes of said 
April __, 2013 meeting on file and of record in my office; that said copy is a full, true and correct 
copy of the original Ordinance adopted at said meeting and entered in said minutes; and that said 
Ordinance has not been amended, modified, rescinded or revoked in any manner since the date 
of its adoption, and the same is now in full force and effect. 

Dated: _____________, 2013 
 
 
 

  
Gwendolynn B. Peirce 

City Clerk Services Manager 
[SEAL] 



  

MAY 14 2013 #4 
440.02 

ORDINANCE NO.  _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ADOPTING THE 2012-2015 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AND THE SANTA BARBARA 
FIRE MANAGERS ASSOCIATION 

  
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Santa 
Barbara and the Santa Barbara Fire Managers Association entered into as of July 1, 
2012 and attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit "A" is hereby 
adopted. 
 
 SECTION 2.  During the term of the agreement, the City Administrator is hereby 
authorized to implement the terms of the Memorandum of Understanding between the 
City of Santa Barbara and the Santa Barbara Fire Managers Association without further 
action by the City Council, unless such further action is explicitly required by state or 
federal law.  This authorization shall include, but not be limited to, the authority to 
implement employee salary increases and publish changes to the salary schedule(s) 
adopted with the annual operating budget. 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
AND 

SANTA BARBARA FIRE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 
 

2012-2015 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 



 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
AND THE 

SANTA BARBARA CITY FIRE MANAGERS ASSOCIATION 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO AS OF _________, BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA, HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE "CITY," AND THE SANTA 
BARBARA CITY FIRE MANAGERS ASSOCIATION, HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO 
AS THE "ASSOCIATION." 
 
Pursuant to Section 3.12 of the Municipal Code of the City of Santa Barbara and Section 
3500 et. seq. of the Government Code, the duly authorized representatives of the City 
and the duly authorized representatives of the Association, having met and conferred in 
good faith concerning wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment of Unit 
employees, declare their agreement to the provisions of this Memorandum of 
Understanding. 
 
FOR THE CITY:      FOR THE ASSOCIATION: 
 
 
       
Kristine Schmidt 
Employee Relations Manager 

 
 
       
Lee Waldron, Fire Battalion Chief 
President 

  
        

James McCoy, Fire Battalion Chief 
Vice President 

 
 
 
 



 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
1. Scope of Representation .......................................................................................... 1 

2. Base Salaries............................................................................................................ 1 

3. Overtime ................................................................................................................... 1 

4. Cafeteria Plan Contribution ....................................................................................... 2 

5. Domestic Partnership Benefits.................................................................................. 2 

6. Life Insurance ........................................................................................................... 3 

7. Long Term Disability ................................................................................................. 3 

8. Short Term Disability ................................................................................................ 3 

9. Accident/Critical Illness Insurance ............................................................................ 3 

10. Tax-Qualified Expense Accounts .............................................................................. 3 

11. Vacation .................................................................................................................... 3 

12. Vacation & Sick Leave Advanced Credit Upon Hire ................................................. 4 

13. Holidays and Personal Leave ................................................................................... 5 

14. Sick Leave ................................................................................................................ 5 

15. Non-Replenishable Sick Leave ................................................................................. 6 

16. Catastrophic Leave ................................................................................................... 6 

17. Leaves of Absence ................................................................................................... 6 

18. PERS Retirement ..................................................................................................... 7 

19. Deferred Compensation ............................................................................................ 8 

20. Retiree Medical Insurance Contribution .................................................................... 8 

21. Uniform Allowance .................................................................................................... 9 

22. Educational Reimbursement Programs .................................................................... 9 

23. City Rights ................................................................................................................ 9 

24. Term, Waiver, and Severability ................................................................................. 9 



 

1 

 
 
1. 0BScope of Representation 
 

A. The Association represents the following management job classifications: 
 
  Fire Battalion Chief 
  Fire Division Chief (Prevention)  
 

B. “Shift personnel” as used in this Agreement refers to those managers in the above 
classifications assigned by the Fire Chief to a 56 hour per week shift schedule. 

 
2. 1BBase Salaries 
 

A. Base salaries will be increased as follows: 
 
Effective Date   Increase 
July 14, 2012    2.0% 
January 12, 2013   1.0% 
January 11, 2014   2.5% 
January 10, 2015   2.0% 

 
B. Upon receipt of 30 days written notice from the Association to the City, effective 

not earlier than November 5, 2014, parties will meet and confer in good faith 
regarding the sole issue of a possible additional January 10, 2015 salary 
increase. 

 
3. 2BOvertime  

A. Overtime for non-emergency situations is limited to when a member is assigned by 
the Fire Chief to backfill another employee’s shift as the assigned Suppression 
Battalion Chief on that shift.  Such overtime will be paid at straight time only.    

B. Overtime will be accrued or paid to Fire Safety Management at straight time only 
when assigned to emergency suppression or prevention duties.   

C. In an effort to address compensation compaction within the fire service, the City will 
begin moving toward premium pay for overtime.  Effective July 13, 2014, such 
overtime will be paid at a premium rate of 110% of the employee’s regular rate of 
pay. 

D. Overtime shall be accrued or paid out at the rate of time and one-half when providing 
mutual aid for which the City is reimbursed at the rate of time and one half. 

E. Overtime will not be accrued for performing administrative duties. 



 

2 

F. Overtime may be accrued in a bank of hours (compensatory time) not to exceed 48 
hours.   

4. 3BCafeteria Plan Contribution 
 
A. Employees will receive a monthly contribution to the cafeteria plan for the 

purchase of health and welfare benefits and/or optional cash-out.  The cafeteria 
plan contribution will be $1,560.00 per month. 
 
Effective January 1, 2013, the cafeteria plan amount will be increased by 
$116.00 per month, to $1676.00 per month.  In the first year of this increase, the 
2013 plan year, such equivalent increase shall be allocated over the remaining 
pay periods in the cafeteria plan year following ratification of this Agreement.  
The City shall not be obligated to conduct an additional open enrollment related 
to this increase to the cafeteria plan amount. 

 
B. Information about the benefits available and their cost will be distributed to all 

employees at the beginning of each benefit year (i.e. calendar year).   
 
C. The City retains full and complete control over the selection, approval and 

administration of the City's group insurance program.  
 
D. The benefits will be subject to the following rules: 
 

1. Benefit selections must be made prior to the beginning of each benefit year.  
Employee changes in benefit plan selections, such as adding or deleting 
coverage and/or dependents, may only be made in accordance with Section 
125 of the Internal Revenue Code and City policy. 

2. All benefits selected from the cafeteria plan must be paid for in full from the 
maximum benefit provided except when the maximum is insufficient to cover 
all insurance coverage selected.  In such cases, the premium amount not 
funded by the City-provided benefit will be paid through an employee 
deduction applied against the medical premiums. 

3. No unexpended dollar amounts associated with selected benefits may be 
disbursed to a terminating employee. 

4. All benefit selections are subject to State and Federal rules, regulations, and 
laws regarding employee benefits and tax status.  No guarantee is made 
regarding the tax-exempt status of any and all benefits presented or selected. 

5. Employees will be eligible for benefits coverage and the monthly cafeteria 
plan contribution, on the first day of the month following their hire date. 

 
5. 4BDomestic Partnership Benefits 
 
The cafeteria plan allowance can be used toward same sex and opposite sex domestic 
partner dependent coverage under the medical, dental, and vision plans, and any other 
plan where such coverage is allowed.  In order to receive this benefit, domestic partners 
must be registered with the City Clerk’s Office and/or the Secretary of State of 



 

3 

California, and the employee must provide proof of registration.  The affected 
employee(s) will be responsible for all tax consequences of this benefit. 
 
Additionally, Domestic Partners who are registered with the City Clerk’s Office and/or 
the Secretary of State of California are treated the same as spouses under all City 
policies related to employees’ families. 
 
6. 5BLife Insurance  
 
Life Insurance will be provided equal to an amount of one times annual salary.  An 
equal amount will be provided for accidental death and dismemberment (ADD) 
coverage.  This amount will not be counted against the cafeteria plan allowance. 
 
7. 6BLong Term Disability 
 
Each employee will receive City-paid coverage under a long term disability insurance 
program.  This amount will not be counted against the cafeteria plan allowance. 
 
8. 7BShort Term Disability  
 
Employees will be eligible to participate in an optional Short-term Disability plan at their 
own cost. 
 
9. 8BAccident/Critical Illness Insurance 
 
Employees will be eligible to participate in an optional Supplemental Accident and 
Critical Illness insurance plan at their own cost. 
 
10. 9BTax-Qualified Expense Accounts 
 
The City will continue to offer several tax-qualified arrangements to allow employees to 
set aside money to pay for eligible expenses on a pre-tax basis.  These include: 

• Medical Flexible Spending Account 
• Dependent Care Account 

 
11. 10BVacation  
  
A. Members will be eligible to accrue vacation as follows:  

 
Years Service Days Hours 

(Non-shift) 
Hours  
(Shift Personnel) 

0-2   15 120 180 
3-5 20 160 240 
6-7 25 200 300 
8+ 28 224 336 

 



 

4 

B. The maximum vacation accrual for non-shift employees will be 352 hours (44 
days).  For shift personnel, the maximum vacation accrual will be 528 hours (44 
days x 12 hours/day). 
 

C. A member whose vacation balances exceed the maximum accrual will not be 
eligible to accrue further vacation until such time as the manager has reduced his 
or her accrued leave balances through time off, catastrophic leave donation, or 
buy-back (“cash out”), to below the maximum accrual.  There is no retroactive 
grant of vacation compensation for the period of time the vacation compensation 
was at the cap. 
 

D. The maximum vacation accrual may be waived if scheduled vacations are 
cancelled by the City for emergencies or cancelled by the manager due to the 
illness, injury, or personal emergency.  The manager will submit to the City 
Administrator, via the Department Head, a memo requesting approval for the 
accrual beyond the maximum.  The City Administrator may establish a deadline 
by which the manager must reduce the vacation accrual to at or below the 
maximum, or be subject to the accrual discontinuance provisions outlined herein.   

 
E. A manager, other than shift personnel, who has taken a minimum of eighty (80) 

hours of vacation and/or management leave in the payroll year may request to be 
paid in full for up to 120 hours of accrued vacation in any one payroll year during 
the vacation cash-out period established by the City.   Shift personnel may 
request vacation cash-out only if they take a minimum of one hundred twenty 
(120) hours of vacation in the payroll year and they may request to be paid in full 
for up to 168 hours of accrued vacation in any one payroll year during the 
vacation buy-back period established by the City.   

 
12. 11BVacation & Sick Leave Advanced Credit Upon Hire 

 
A. An employee who is appointed from outside City of Santa Barbara government 

service within one (1) year of leaving employment with either the City of Santa 
Barbara or another city, county, state agency, federal agency or special district 
and who, in the opinion of the Human Resources Manager, possesses 
government experience directly related to the position to which he or she has 
been appointed, may be offered credit for years of prior service with the City of 
Santa Barbara and/or his or her immediate previous government employer in the 
following ways:  

 
i. Vacation Accrual: At the discretion of the Human Resources Manager, 

the employee may be offered credit for up to the total number of prior 
full years of service at the City of Santa Barbara and/or his or her 
immediate previous government employer toward the initial vacation 
accrual rate. The employee will not be eligible to progress to a higher 
accrual rate until employee has the normal required minimum amount 
of City of Santa Barbara service for that accrual rate.  



 

5 

 
ii. Sick bank: At the discretion of the Human Resources Manager, the 

employee may be credited with up to 96 hours of sick leave. 
Thereafter, employee will accrue sick leave at the normal rate.  

 
B. A former City of Santa Barbara employee reemployed within one year under 

Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 3.16.320 will automatically qualify for the 
full vacation accrual credit under (i), above, for his or her prior City of Santa 
Barbara service. However, under no circumstance will prior accrued vacation 
balances cashed out to the employee upon termination be reinstated.  

 
13. 12BHolidays and Personal Leave  
 
A. Members on a regular 40 hour shift will be eligible for legal holidays and personal 

leave under the same terms as other Group II Mangers under the citywide 
Management Performance and Compensation Plan. 
 
Following ratification of this Agreement, holidays and personal leave for the July 
2012 through June 2013 Fiscal Year will be restored to these levels. 
 

B. Shift personnel will accrue holidays and personal leave days at the combined 
rate of one twelve (12) hour day per month.   
 
Following ratification of this Agreement, holiday accruals for the July 2012 through 
June 2013 Fiscal Year will be restored to these levels. 

 
C. If an employee’s accrued holiday bank exceeds 156 hours, the City shall have 

the option either to require the employee to take the excess holiday time off or to 
pay the employee for the excess hours at straight time.  The option of time off or 
pay in lieu of holiday hours shall be at the sole discretion of the City.   
 
Employees who are bargaining unit members on the date of ratification of the 
2012-2015 Agreement shall not be subject to the holiday accrual cap.  The 
maximum holiday accrual for these employees will be the number of hours that 
they had in their respective banks effective the end of the first full pay period after 
ratification.   
 

14. 13BSick Leave 
 
Non-shift members are eligible for regular sick leave accrual on the same basis as other 
Group II Managers under the citywide Management Performance and Compensation 
Plan.   
 
For shift personnel, regular days of sick leave will accrue at 12 hours per month. 
 



 

6 

All employees shall be subject to a maximum regular sick leave accrual, not including 
non-replenishable sick leave Under Article 15 of this Agreement, of 2160 hours. 
 
15. 14BNon-Replenishable Sick Leave 
 
A. After five (5) years of continuous service, a non-shift employee may accumulate 

additional “non-replenishable” sick leave at the rate of sixteen (16) hours at full 
salary for each additional year of continuous service.  The maximum 
accumulation is two hundred and forty (240) hours and is not replenishable.   

 
B. For shift personnel, after five (5) years of continuous service, an employee may 

accumulate additional “non-replenishable” sick leave at the rate of twenty four 
(24) hours at full salary for each additional year of continuous service.  The 
maximum accumulation is three hundred and sixty (360) hours and is not 
replenishable.   
 

C. Non-replenishable sick leave hours may only be used after the employee’s entire 
regular sick leave bank is exhausted. 

 
16. 15BCatastrophic Leave 
  
Employees will be eligible to donate vacation time to the applicable leave banks of full-
time and part-time employees who are incapacitated due to a catastrophic illness or 
injury or who must care for a spouse or child who has a catastrophic illness or injury 
under the same terms and conditions as other Group II Managers. 
 
17. 16BLeaves of Absence 
 
A. Employees may request a medical leave of absence of up to one year under the 

City’s FMLA/CFRA Family Medical Leave Policy, the Leave without Pay (Medical 
Reasons) Policy, the Maternity Leave Policy, and/or the Parental Leave Policy.   

 
B. The City Administrator may grant an extra leave of absence, in addition to that 

provided under the various sick leave policies to an employee who has been 
continuously employed by the City for five (5) years or more.  When all sick leave 
has been exhausted, the employee can make a request, in writing, for extra 
leave and attach a report from his/her medical doctor stating the extent of the 
illness and the approximate time required for recovery.  If approved the request 
shall be based on the following schedule: 
 
Service in Years  
(active & continuous) 

Maximum # of Months of Extra Leave Allowable   

5- 10  3 
10-15  6  (including the 3 above) 
15-20  9  (including the 6 above) 
20 + 12  (including the 9 above) 



 

7 

 
During such period of extra leave, the employee shall receive an amount equal to 
50% of his/her regular salary  

 
C. Non-Medical Leave:  Employees may also request a personal leave of absence 

of up to one year for non-medical reasons under the City’s Leave of Absence 
Without Pay (Non-medical reasons) Policy.  A sabbatical may constitute a reason 
for a leave of absence.  An approved leave of absence without pay will not 
constitute a break in continuous service. 

 
18. 17BPERS Retirement 
 
A. Employees will be covered under the Fire Safety contract under the Public 

Employees' Retirement System (PERS) with a 3% at age 50 benefit formula.    
 
B. Employees shall contribute toward PERS Retirement as follows: 

1. Effective July 1, 2012 employees will continue to pay 2.98% of salary to 
CalPERS under Government Code Section 20516(a) (Cost Sharing).   The 
City will continue to contribute the entire required employee portion of the 
PERS contribution rate equal to 9% of pensionable income on behalf of 
bargaining unit members as Employer Paid Member Contributions 
(EPMC), which shall be credited to the individual member's account.  

2. Effective January 12, 2013, existing employees will contribute a portion of 
the required employee contribution equal to 2.25%of pensionable income 
and the City’s Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC) will be 
reduced accordingly to 6.75% of pensionable income.  If retroactivity for 
the January 12, 2013 employee contribution increase cannot be achieved, 
a higher amount will be temporarily implemented to achieve similar City 
savings to the January 12, 2013 implementation date. 

3. Effective June 29, 2013 payments under Government Section 20516(a) 
will end and employees will contribute 4.5% of pensionable income or 
one-half of the normal member contribution.  The City’s Employer Paid 
Member Contributions will be reduced accordingly to 4.5% of pensionable 
income.   

4. Effective January 11, 2014 employees will contribute a member 
contribution an amount equal to 7% of pensionable income and the City’s 
Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC) will be reduced accordingly 
to 2% of pensionable income.   

5. Effective January 10, 2015 employees will pay the entire member 
contribution equal to 9% of pensionable income.   
 

C. Until January 9, 2015, The City shall report the value of any Employer Paid 
Member Contributions (EPMC) to PERS as compensation earnable pursuant to 
Government Code Section 20636(c)(4).  Effective January 10, 2015, the City will 
rescind resolutions for paying and reporting the value of Employer Paid Member 



 

8 

Contributions to PERS as compensation pursuant to Government Code Section 
20636(c)(4) for all employees. 
 

D. Notwithstanding Sections A through C, above, effective January 1, 2013, new 
members as defined by California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 
2013 (hereinafter “AB 340”) will be covered under the 2.7% at 57 retirement 
formula, with a final compensation measurement period of the average of the 
highest three (3) consecutive years, as well as all other statutory requirements of 
AB 340.  Effective January 1, 2013, new employees and/or members as defined 
by AB 340 shall contribute half the normal cost for benefits, as defined by AB 
340; the City will not pay any portion of these employees’ required contributions.   
 

E. Employees will also have the option, at their own expense, to receive PERS 
service credit for any military service time or other service time eligible for service 
credit purchase under the PERS Fire Safety plan.  
 

F. Employees may convert unused accumulated sick leave to additional PERS 
service credit at the time of retirement. (Government Code Section 20965). 

 
19. 18BDeferred Compensation 
 
In addition to the City’s retirement plans, employees may elect to participate in a tax-
qualified Section 457 government defined contribution retirement program. 
 
20. 19BRetiree Medical Insurance Contribution 
 
A. This provision is applicable to employees who retire from City service and 

1. Have 10 or more years of classified or unclassified service; or 
2. Retire from the City with an industrial disability retirement. 

 
B. The City will contribute $10.50 per month, per year of service, toward the 

purchase of retiree medical insurance, up to a maximum of 35 years (i.e. $315 
per month).   

 
C. The retiree is not limited to the purchase of a City sponsored plan, provided 

however, that if the retiree purchases another insurance plan, the retiree must 
supply the City with adequate proof of insurance coverage prior to any 
contribution from the City.  Proof of such coverage will be provided to the City on 
a periodic basis, as reasonably determined by the City. 

 
D. The City will continue to make its contribution until the retiree reaches age 65 or 

dies, whichever occurs first, provided however, that if the retiree dies before 
reaching the age of 65 and there is a surviving spouse or registered domestic 
partner, the City's contribution will cease when the retiree would have reached 
65.  Thereafter, the spouse may remain on the insurance plan, at his/her cost, 
subject to the conditions set forth by the insurance company. 



 

9 

 
21. 20BUniform Allowance 
 
Members will receive an annual uniform allowance equal to the amount established for 
a Firefighter per the Fire Unit evaluation in effect at the time.     
 
22. 21BEducational Reimbursement Programs  
 
The Citywide Educational Reimbursement Policy and the Management Master’s Degree 
Program were suspended effective July 1, 2009.  Employees will not be eligible for 
these benefits until such time as the program has been reinstated by the City 
Administrator Citywide.   
 
23. 22BCity Rights  

 
A. The City shall retain, whether exercised or not, solely and exclusively, all express 

and inherent rights and authority pursuant to law, except to the extent such 
authority is explicitly waived by the express terms of this agreement. 

 
B. The City’s rights shall include the right to determine the level of, and the manner in 

which, the City’s activities are conducted, managed, and administered.  The 
Association recognizes the exclusive right of the City to establish and maintain 
rules and procedures for the administration of its departments.  Such rights 
include, but are not limited to, the exclusive right to: determine the mission of its 
constituent departments, commissions and boards; set standards of service; 
determine the procedures and standards of selection for employment and 
promotion; direct its employees; take disciplinary action; relieve its employees 
from duty because of economic reasons or for cause as provided in Section 1007 
of the City Charter; maintain the efficiency of governmental operations; determine 
the methods, means and personnel by which government operations are to be 
conducted; determine the content of job classifications; take all necessary 
actions to carry out its mission in emergencies; and exercise complete control 
and discretion over its organization and the technology of performing its work.   

 
C. The Association recognizes that the City Administrator retains, whether exercised 

or not, exclusive management decision-making authority over matters within the 
rights of the City. 

 
24. 23BTerm, Waiver, and Severability 
 
A. The term of this agreement shall be thirty six (36) months commencing July 1, 

2012 and ending at midnight on June 30, 2015.  The term of this agreement may 
be extended by mutual agreement. 

 
B. The Association and the City each acknowledges that it had the unlimited right to 

bargain with regard to issues within the scope of representation. For the term of 



 

10 

this Agreement, unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, neither the 
Association nor the City shall be further obligated to meet and confer.  All terms 
and conditions of employment within the Association’s scope of representation 
not covered by this agreement shall continue to remain in full force and effect. 

 
C. If any provision of this Agreement is declared by judicial authority to be unlawful, 

unenforceable, or not in accordance with applicable provisions of state, federal or 
local laws or regulations, such part of the provision will be suspended and 
superseded by the applicable law or regulation and the remainder of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement. 

 



Agenda Item No.  5 
 

File Code No.  160.06 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  May 14, 2013 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Administration Division, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Records Destruction For Airport Department 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records Held by the Airport Department in 
the Administration Division. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City Council adopted Resolution No. 12-008 on February 14, 2012, approving the 
City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures Manual.  The 
Manual contains the records retention and disposition schedules for all City 
departments.  The schedules are a comprehensive listing of records created or 
maintained by the City, the length of time each record should be retained, and the legal 
retention authority.  If no legal retention authority is cited, the retention period is based 
on standard records management practice. 
 
Pursuant to the Manual, the Airport Director submitted a request for records destruction 
to the City Clerk Services Manager to obtain written consent from the City Attorney.  
The City Clerk Services Manager agreed that the list of records proposed for destruction 
conformed to the retention and disposition schedules.  The City Attorney has consented 
in writing to the destruction of the proposed records. 
 
The Airport Director requests the City Council to approve the destruction of the Airport 
Department records in the Administration Division listed on Exhibit A of the resolution 
without retaining a copy. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Under the City's Sustainability Program, one of the City's goals is to increase recycling 
efforts and divert waste from landfills.  The Citywide Records Management Program 
outlines that records approved for destruction be recycled, reducing paper waste. 



Council Agenda Report 
Records Destruction For Airport Department 
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Karen Ramsdell, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA RELATING TO THE DESTRUCTION OF 
RECORDS HELD BY THE AIRPORT DEPARTMENT IN 
THE ADMINISTRATION DIVISION 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 12-008 on February 14, 2012, 
approving the City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures 
Manual; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara Records Management Policies and Procedures 
Manual contains the records retention and disposition schedules for all City 
departments.  The records retention and disposition schedules are a comprehensive 
listing of records created or maintained by the City, the length of time each record 
should be retained, and the legal retention authority.  If no legal retention authority is 
cited, the retention period is based on standard records management practice; 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 34090 provides that, with the approval of the 
City Council and the written consent of the City Attorney, the head of a City department 
may destroy certain city records, documents, instruments, books or papers under the 
Department Head’s charge, without making a copy, if the records are no longer needed; 
 
WHEREAS, the Airport Director submitted a request for the destruction of records held 
by the Airport Department to the City Clerk Services Manager to obtain written consent 
from the City Attorney.   A list of the records, documents, instruments, books or papers 
proposed for destruction is attached hereto as Exhibit A and shall hereafter be referred 
to collectively as the “Records”; 
 
WHEREAS, the Records do not include any records affecting title to real property or 
liens upon real property, court records, records required to be kept by statute, records 
less than two years old, video or audio recordings that are evidence in any claim or 
pending litigation, or the minutes, ordinances or resolutions of the City Council or any 
City board or commission; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk Services Manager agrees that the proposed destruction 
conforms to the City’s retention and disposition schedules; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney consents to the destruction of the Records; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara finds and determines that the 
Records are no longer required and may be destroyed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA that the Airport Director, or her designated representative, is authorized and 
directed to destroy the Records without retaining a copy. 



EXHIBIT A 

 

Airport Department 
Administration Division 

 
 
 
 
 Records Series Dates 

 
 

General Files       1970 – 2001 
  

 
Work Orders       2010 – 2012 

  
 
       Administration Financial Files     2007 -2009 

  
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  6 
File Code No.  110.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT  
 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Agreements With Martin & Chapman Company And Donna M. 

Grindey, CMC, For Election Services Related To The November 5, 
2013 General Municipal Election 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Authorize the Assistant City Administrator to execute a $134,000 professional 

services agreement with Martin & Chapman Company for election services 
necessary concerning the City’s November 2013 General Election, and to 
approve expenditures of up to $20,100 for extra services that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

B. Authorize the Assistant City Administrator to execute a $30,000 professional 
services agreement with Donna M. Grindey, CMC, for election services, and to 
approve expenditures of up to $4,500 for extra services that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City’s next general municipal election to fill the Mayor’s and three City Council 
seats and to decide one ballot measure will be held on Tuesday, November 5, 2013. On 
April 23, 2013, Council authorized staff to conduct a Vote-By-Mail Election.  At this point 
in the election planning process, staff is requesting that Council authorize contracting 
with Martin & Chapman Company and Donna M. Grindey, CMC, for professional 
services related to the administration of the November 5, 2013 Vote-By-Mail General 
Municipal Election. 
 
Martin & Chapman Company and Donna Grindey specialize in and have provided 
comprehensive election services to local municipalities, including the City of Santa 
Barbara.   
 
Martin & Chapman Company, located in Anaheim, California, was established in 1956 
and provides election supplies, services and consultation to over 400 cities, counties 
and associations in the states of California and Nevada.  Martin & Chapman 
satisfactorily provided stand-alone election services to the City in 2007, 2009 and 2011.  



Council Agenda Report 
Agreements With Martin & Chapman Company And Donna M. Grindey, CMC, For 
Election Services Related To The November 5, 2013, General Municipal Election  
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 

 

Additionally, the Company has provided limited consultant services to the City of Santa 
Barbara related to ballot measures, initiatives and elections for the past 20 years.  
Martin & Chapman serves as the primary election consultant for cities in the California 
counties of Ventura, Santa Barbara, San Luis Obispo, Los Angeles, Orange, San 
Bernardino, Riverside, San Diego, and Imperial.   
 
Martin & Chapman will provide the following supplies and services to the City of Santa 
Barbara: 
 
• Nomination, mail ballot and precinct supplies; 
• Voter identification reports; 
• Vote by mail tracking program; 
• Sample ballot/voter information pamphlets; 
• Official ballots and supplies; 
• Ballot counting, including equipment, and election night supplies; 
• Translation services; and 
• Qualified staff member availability by telephone or in person. 
 
Donna M. Grindey is a retired City Clerk who specializes in election consulting services.  
Ms. Grindey will provide assistance with all aspects of the election process, especially 
focusing on the vote-by-mail process.  As a City Clerk, Ms. Grindey successfully held 
seven stand-alone elections for the cities of Santa Clarita and Lancaster.  Ms. Grindey 
has satisfactorily previously provided stand-alone election consultant services to several 
tri-county cities, including the City of Santa Barbara in 2007, 2009 and 2011.   
 
Ms. Grindey will provide the following consulting services:  
 
• Supervision of all aspects of the vote-by-mail process; 
• Training of vote-by-mail board members and preparation of reports; 
• Preparation and review of election materials; 
• Training of City staff on various aspects of the election process; and 
• Assistance with training, procedures and design for central counting place. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Agreements With Martin & Chapman Company And Donna M. Grindey, CMC, For 
Election Services Related To The November 5, 2013, General Municipal Election  
May 14, 2013 
Page 3 

 

Staff plans to return to Council on June 4, 2013, to request Council adoption of the 
following resolutions necessary to schedule the City’s general municipal election: 
 
• Calling for the Election;  
• Authorizing a Vote-By-Mail Election; 
• Adopting regulations pertaining to candidates’ statements;  
• Directing the City Attorney to prepare impartial analyses of any ballot measures or 

Charter Amendments; and 
• Setting priorities for filing written arguments for ballot measures or Charter 

Amendments. 
 
At the June 4, 2013 meeting, staff will also provide Council with an update on the 
locations of the drop-off centers, as requested by Council at the April 23, 2013 meeting. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The City Clerk’s Office included $300,000 in the Fiscal Year 2014 proposed budget to 
cover the costs of the November 5, 2013, general municipal election, including the 
services outlined in this report .   
 
PREPARED BY: Gwen Peirce, CMC, City Clerk Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo A. López, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
File Code No.  570.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Representative Services Agreement With Carpi & Clay, Inc. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the Waterfront Director to execute a Representative Services 
Agreement between the City of Santa Barbara and Carpi & Clay, doing business as Carpi, 
Clay & Smith, for liaison and contact services with the United States Government, at a rate 
not to exceed $1,600 per month, and in a total amount not to exceed $38,400 for fiscal 
years 2014 and 2015. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Waterfront Department retained Carpi, Clay & Smith (formerly E. Del Smith and 
Company) beginning in Fiscal Year 1989-1990 to assist in dealing with significant issues 
regarding federal assistance in the Waterfront, including the successful return of the Naval 
Reserve Center to the City and continued maintenance dredging of the Harbor by the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers. Funding for ongoing maintenance dredging of the Santa 
Barbara Harbor continues in large part due to the coordination and assistance of Carpi, 
Clay & Smith.   
 
Although Waterfront Department staff continues to work directly with federal officials and 
the California Marine Affairs and Navigation Conference (CMANC), the retention of Carpi, 
Clay & Smith provides a more direct and continuous approach to our federal 
representatives in Washington, D.C. Funds for this contract were included in the 
Department’s two-year financial plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015. 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian J. Bosse, Waterfront Business Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  560.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT: Authorization To Award A Purchase Order For The Airport Building 

247 Demolition Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
Authorize the General Services Manager to issue a purchase order with Tryco 
Contracting Company, in their low bid amount of $67,000, for the Airport Building 247 
Demolition Project, Bid Number 3692, and approve expenditures of up to $6,700 for 
extra services of Tryco Contracting Company that may result from necessary changes 
in the scope of work. 
  
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
Airport Building 247 was constructed as part of the Marine Corps Air Station in early 
1942. The 20,000 square foot building was constructed as an aircraft hangar. However, 
it has not been used as an aircraft hangar for over forty years. Generally it has been 
rented to multiple airport tenants for storage uses.   
 
In 1997 the Santa Barbara Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan was approved and 
included the demolition of a number of buildings including Building 247 in anticipation of 
the then-proposed Gateway Center Project. The demolition of Hangar 247 was 
analyzed in the 1997 Santa Barbara Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan Environmental 
Impact Report. The required mitigation, which consisted of large scale photo 
documentation by a qualified architectural historian consistent with the City’s MEA 
Cultural Resources policy, was completed in 1998. 
 
More recently, the building structural system has deteriorated resulting in two of the 
eight bottom chords in the roof truss systems breaking. This has resulted in the failure 
of the roof system, as well as causing the entire building to lean. Accordingly, the 
Building Department has ordered the building to be demolished or repaired. Repairs are 



Council Agenda Report 
Authorization to Award Purchase Order For Airport Building 247 Demolition 
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 
 

 

not an option as the building is dangerous and would have to have extensive demolition 
in order to make the repairs. The building would also need to be brought up to code to  
meet today’s building codes which are more stringent than those in place over sixty 
years ago when constructed. 
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of seven bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Tryco Contracting 

Simi Valley 
 

$67,000 

2. Unlimited Environmental 
Signal Hill 

 

$67,750 

3. Peter Lapidus 
Carpinteria 

 

$75,240 
 

4. Cushman Contracting 
Goleta 

 

$82,000 
 

5. Standard Industries 
Saticoy 

 

$97,721 
 

6. A.J. Diani Construction 
Santa Maria 

 

$122,535 
 

7. Bob’s Backhoe 
Goleta 
 

 

$128,388 
 

 
The low bid of $67,000, submitted by Tryco Contracting Company, is an acceptable bid 
that is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $6,700, or ten percent, is typical for this 
type of work and size of project.   
 
FUNDING   
 
This project is funded by the Airport Capital Fund.  There are sufficient funds in the 
Airport Capital Fund to cover the cost of this Project. 
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Authorization to Award Purchase Order For Airport Building 247 Demolition 
May 14, 2013 
Page 3 
 

 

 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 

 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Tryco Contracting $67,000 $6,700 $73,700 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $73,700 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Leif Reynolds, Project Engineer 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Karen Ramsdell, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction For The Chapala Street Bridge 

Replacement Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with Granite Construction Company in their low bid amount of 

$1,411,510 for construction of the Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project, 
Bid No. 3590; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract in the amount of 
$1,411,510 with Granite Construction Company and approve expenditures up to 
$141,151 to cover any cost increases that may result from contract change 
orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid quantities and 
actual quantities measured for payment;  

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with MNS Engineers, 
Incorporated, in the amount of $478,596 for construction management services, 
and approve expenditures of up to $16,404 for extra services of MNS Engineers 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work;  

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Drake Haglan and 
Associates in the amount of $45,080 for design support services during 
construction; 

E. Accept Federal Highway Administration Grant funding in the total amount of 
$2,188,562 to cover the cost of construction; 

F. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $2,188,562 in the Fiscal 
Year 2013 Streets Capital Fund for the Chapala Street Bridge Replacement 
Project funded by the Federal Highway Administration Grant;  

G. Authorize an appropriation of $74,537 from available Streets Fund reserves to 
cover final City costs for the design and right of way phases as well as to cover 
the cost of work not eligible for reimbursement during the construction phase of 
this Project; and  

H. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $2,000 in the Fiscal Year 
2013 Streets Capital Fund for the Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project 
from revenues from granting Crown Castle a utility easement. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction For The Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project  
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 
 

 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Six bids were received for the Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project (Project), with 
the lowest bidder being Granite Construction Company (Granite). To complete the 
construction phase of the Project, staff recommends that Council authorize the Public 
Works Director to accept the low bid and enter into a contract with Granite.  Staff also 
recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to enter into contracts with 
MNS Engineers (MNS) and Drake Haglan and Associates (Drake Haglan) for professional 
services during construction. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work consists of demolishing the existing 4,655-square foot bridge deck and 
replacing it with a 2,740 square-foot bridge deck.  The south side of the new bridge 
deck will be supported on piles and a foundation behind the existing sandstone 
abutment.  The north side of the new bridge will be supported by a new abutment that 
will be located in the same location as the existing sandstone wall.  In consensus with 
Creeks and Transportation staff recommendations, and as approved by the Planning 
Commission, the new bridge will be reduced in width and still be able to provide one 
vehicular lane in each direction and a five-foot sidewalk on each side.  The Project also 
includes native landscaping and new street lighting. 
 
The northerly bridge abutment will be immediately adjacent to the proposed Lower 
Mission Creek Flood Control Project bypass box culvert. The box culvert will be 
constructed by the Santa Barbara County Flood Control District in 2014.   
 
SCHEDULE AND TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL 
 
The local utility companies will be performing utility relocations during May 2013, in 
preparation for the replacement of the bridge. 
 
Construction is scheduled to begin in June 2013, and will be completed by winter 2014.   
Since the bridge runs across the full width of Chapala Street and Yanonali Street, 
construction work will require that the intersection be closed to thru-traffic for 
approximately seven months.  Detours for pedestrians, bicycles, and vehicles will be in 
place. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction For The Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project  
May 14, 2013 
Page 3 
 

 

 
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of six bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Granite Construction Company 

Santa Barbara 
 

$1,411,510.00 

2. Brough Construction, Incorporated 
Arroyo Grande 

 

$1,559,635.50* 

3. C.A. Rasmussen, Incorporated 
Valencia 
 

$1,583,723.50 

4. Whitaker Construction Group, 
Incorporated 
Paso Robles 

 

$1,665,392.55 

5. Lash Construction, Incorporated 
Santa Barbara 

 

$1,695,801.00 

6. Specialty Construction, Incorporated 
San Luis Obispo 

 

$2,194,060.00 

*corrected bid total 
 
The low bid of $1,411,510, submitted by Granite, is an acceptable bid that is responsive 
to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $141,151, or 10 percent, is typical for this 
type of work and size of project.   
 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with MNS in the amount of $478,596 for construction management services, 
and approve expenditures of up to $16,404 for extra services of MNS Engineers that 
may result from necessary changes in the scope of work.  MNS was selected by a 
Request for Proposals process in which they were ranked the highest, based on their 
qualifications and experience on similar projects. 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Drake Haglan in the amount of $45,080 for design support services during 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction For The Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project  
May 14, 2013 
Page 4 
 

 

construction.  Drake Haglan was the design engineer, and their services will need to be 
retained during the construction phase. 
 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH 
 
Staff is currently working on a community outreach strategy with Ayars & Associates for 
the construction phase of the project. Anticipated outreach methods include a 
preconstruction mailing, project fact sheet, preconstruction community meeting, road 
signs, project website, hotline, and a ribbon cutting ceremony for the completed bridge.  
 
FUNDING   
 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) grant funds have been authorized to pay for 
100 percent of eligible project construction costs, with the City contributing ineligible 
costs (e.g. utility undergrounding).  The FHWA grant is administered through Caltrans. 
 
The construction phase of this project totals $2,215,099.  The FHWA grant will cover 
eligible costs of $2,188,562, with the balance of $26,537 payable by the City for 
ineligible costs.  There is an additional $50,000 required to cover final City costs not 
covered by the grant during the design and right of way phases for a total City funding 
need of $76,537.   
 
To satisfy the City funding need, staff recommends appropriations of $74,537 from 
Streets Fund Measure A reserves and $2,000 from revenues from an easement to be 
granted to Crown Castle across the Depot Triangle.  
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Granite $1,411,510 $141,151 $1,552,661 
MNS $478,596 $16,404 $495,000 
Drake Haglan $45,080 $0 $45,080 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $2,092,741 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction For The Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project  
May 14, 2013 
Page 5 
 

 

 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 
FHWA Share City 

Share 
Total Cost 

Design (by Contract) $513,087 $66,476 $579,563 
Other Design Costs (by Contract) $90,510 $11,726 $102,236 
City Staff Costs $237,438 $123,950* $361,388 
Temporary and Permanent Construction 
Easements 

$7,675 $0 $7,675 

Permits $0 $7,934 $7,934 
Special Supplies and Expenses $0 $441 $441 

 Design Subtotal $848,710 $210,527 $1,059,237 
Construction Contract   $1,411,510 $0 $1,411,510

 Construction Change Order Allowance $141,151 $0 $141,151
 Construction Management/Inspection 

(by Contract) 

$495,000 $0 $495,000
 

Design Support $45,080 $0 $45,080 

Construction Contacts   $2,092,741 $0  $2,092,741
 

Pre-Construction Services (construction 
management and community outreach 
by separate contracts) 

$49,885 $0 $49,885 

Project Management (by City Staff) $45,936 $11,484 $57,420 
Utility Underground Conduit Installation 
through Depot Triangle Property (by 
Purchase Order)  

$0 $10,053 $10,053 

Miscellaneous Expenses $0 $5,000 $5,000 
 Miscellaneous Construction  $95,821 $26,537 $122,358 

Construction Subtotal $2,188,562 $26,537 $2,215,099 
TOTAL PROJECT COST $3,037,272 $237,064 $3,274,336 

 
* Includes $50,000 in additional City funding need for a total of $76,537 including 
construction.



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction For The Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project  
May 14, 2013 
Page 6 
 

 

 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
The Project was designed to replace the Chapala Street Bridge to provide for all forms 
of transportation while protecting the historical sandstone channel walls and improving 
visibility of Mission Creek.  The Project also includes the use of native plants that 
require less water, and street lights that are energy efficient.  The concrete, asphalt, and 
steel that is removed during demolition, will be recycled. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Engineer/AH/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  10 
 

File Code No.  280.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT  

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 

TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: Administration Division, Finance Department 

SUBJECT: Tax Equity And Fiscal Responsibility Act Hearing for Covenant 
Retirement Communities, Inc. (Samarkand) Debt Issuance 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Tax-Exempt Bond Financing to be 
Issued by the California Statewide Communities Development Authority to Benefit 
Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc. and Certain Affiliates.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The California Statewide Communities Development Authority (Authority) is a joint 
exercise of powers authority formed to assist local governments and non-profits with 
their financing needs. The City is a member of the Authority. 
 
The Authority is assisting Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc. (Covenant) with a 
debt issuance in an amount not to exceed $40 million.  Covenant owns and operates 
several continuing care retirement communities in California. Among the Covenant 
facilities, one is located at 2550 Treasure Drive in Santa Barbara. 
 
Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc., an Illinois not for profit corporation, has 
requested that the Authority issue bonds to finance the renovation of their long term 
care facilities.  One of these facilities is located in the City of Santa Barbara.  
 
Under federal and state law, the governing body of any local entity within which bond 
proceeds are to be spent must:  (1) conduct a public hearing and (2) approve the 
issuance of the debt.  Therefore, because the new bond financing will benefit the 
Covenant property, which is located within the City of Santa Barbara, the City Council 
must hold a public hearing and adopt a resolution approving the debt issuance. Council 
has held numerous such TEFRA (Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act) hearings, 
most recently for the issuance of bonds by California Statewide Communities 
Development Authority for the benefit of the American Baptist Homes of the West (Valle 
Verde), which was approved by City Council on January 26, 2010.  



Council Agenda Report 
TEFRA Hearing For Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc. (Samarkand) Debt 
Issuance  
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
It is important to understand that the City is in no way associated with the debt issuance 
and is not obligated to make debt service payments on the bonds.  In addition, holding a 
public hearing and adopting a resolution in no way makes the City a party to the debt 
issuance.  Federal laws governing these types of hearings recognized that non-profit 
agencies typically do not have the facilities to conduct their own public hearings; 
therefore, the local jurisdictions were allowed to loan their facilities and process to hold 
public hearings for the benefit of the issuing agency.  
 
Staff recommends the City hold the public hearing and adopt the resolution approving 
the issuance of bonds by the Authority. 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 

APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING A TAX-EXEMPT BOND 
FINANCING TO BE ISSUED BY THE CALIFORNIA 
STATEWIDE COMMUNITIES DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY TO BENEFIT COVENANT RETIREMENT 
COMMUNITIES, INC. AND CERTAIN AFFILIATES 
 

WHEREAS, Covenant Retirement Communities, Inc., an Illinois not for profit 
corporation (the “Corporation”), has requested that the California Statewide 
Communities Development Authority (the “Authority”) issue bonds in one or more series 
in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $40,000,000 (the “Bonds”), up to 
$5,000,000 of which will be used to, among other things, finance or reimburse the cost 
of the acquisition, construction, remodeling, renovation and equipping (the “Financing”) 
of certain long-term care facilities, including, without limitation, the (i) acquisition, 
construction, equipping, remodeling and renovation of independent living and health 
care facilities owned or operated by the Corporation or Covenant Retirement 
Communities West (d/b/a The Samarkand, Brandel Hall and The Smith Health Care 
Center) (the “Facilities”) located in the City of Santa Barbara (the “City”), (ii) fund a debt 
service reserve fund if deemed necessary or advisable by the Corporation or the 
Authority, (iii) provide working capital to the Corporation if deemed necessary or 
advisable by the Corporation or the Authority, (iv) pay a portion of the interest on the 
Bonds if deemed necessary or advisable by the Corporation or the Authority, and (v) 
pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the 
“Code”), the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority must be approved by the City 
because the Facilities are located within the territorial limits of the City; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “Council”) is the elected legislative 
body of the City and is one of the applicable elected representatives required to approve 
the issuance of the Bonds under Section 147(f) of the Code; 

WHEREAS, the Authority has requested that the Council approve the issuance of 
the Bonds by the Authority in order to satisfy the public approval requirement of Section 
147(f) of the Code and the requirements of Section 9 of the Amended and Restated 
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1988 (the “Agreement”), 
among certain local agencies, including the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Code, the Council has, following 
notice duly given, held a public hearing regarding the issuance of the Bonds, and now 
desires to approve the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority. 



2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara as follows: 

Section 1. The Council hereby approves the issuance of the Bonds by the 
Authority.  It is the purpose and intent of the Council that this Resolution constitute 
approval of the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority, for the purposes of (a) Section 
147(f) of the Code by the applicable elected representative of the governmental unit 
having jurisdiction over the area in which the Facilities are to be located, in accordance 
with said Section 147(f) and (b) Section 9 of the Agreement. 

Section 2. The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and 
severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents 
which they deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comply 
with the terms and intent of this Resolution and the financing transaction approved 
hereby. 

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2013. 

Approved as to form: 

      
John F. Bibby, Jr., as 
Bond Counsel to the Authority 

      
Assistant City Attorney 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof, held on 
the 14th day of May, 2013 by the following vote of the Council: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

      
City Clerk 



Agenda Item No.  11 
 

File Code No.  570.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  May 14, 2013 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution Approving Application For Clean Beaches Initiative 

Grant 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara, Authorizing the Public Works Director to Submit a Clean Beaches 
Initiative Grant Application in an Amount Not to Exceed $675,000, and Execute an 
Agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board Grant Program. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Clean Beaches Initiative Grant Program was initiated by the State Water 
Resources Control Board to provide funding for projects that promote water quality and 
environmental protection of coastal waters, estuaries, bays, and near-shore waters.  In 
particular, 38 California beaches have been identified as Priority Beaches for grant 
projects, including East Beach at Mission Creek, Leadbetter Beach, and Arroyo Burro 
Beach. 
 
The Public Works Department is conducting the Wastewater Main Rehabilitation Project 
(Project) in the Laguna Watershed. The Project consists of rehabilitating wastewater 
pipeline to prevent possible pipe leakage from collection system pipes which could filter 
through soils and enter storm drain pipes. Cured-in-place resin or plastic liner will be 
used to line the pipes. Sewer pipes that cross directly above a storm drain pipe, or are 
within five meters and above a storm drain pipe, are designated for rehabilitation or 
repair.  Adoption of a resolution authorizing application for the grant is a required part of 
the grant application.  
 
Staff anticipates applying for a grant award amount of $675,000.  If awarded, the City is 
required to provide a 75% funding match for the Project consisting of capital costs for 
design and construction. This amounts to $2,700,000.  The grant will offset costs for 
project work that is currently in design. Adequate funding is available in the Wastewater 
Fund. 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution Approving Application For Clean Beaches Initiative Grant  
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The Project will identify and rehabilitate wastewater lines that have the potential to leak.  
Lining these pipes will proactively eliminate the opportunity for leakage that could reach 
storm drains and subsequently Santa Barbara’s beaches.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Rebecca Bjork, Water Resources Manager/TL/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA, AUTHORIZING THE PUBLIC WORKS 
DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT A CLEAN BEACHES INITIATIVE 
GRANT APPLICATION IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$675,000, AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 
CALIFORNIA STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL 
BOARD GRANT PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, the California State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) has enacted 
the Clean Beaches Initiative Grant Program to support projects that promote water 
quality and environmental protection of coastal waters, estuaries, bays, and near-shore 
waters;  
 
WHEREAS, the City is in support of projects that promote water quality and 
maintenance of sewer infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City proposes to enter into an agreement with the SWRCB to meet all 
established deadlines for the purposes of the grant program. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 The Public Works Director, or her designee, is hereby authorized and empowered to 
submit a grant application to the SWRCB Clean Beaches Initiative Grant Program, 
execute in the name of the City of Santa Barbara all necessary applications, contracts, 
payment requests, agreements and amendments hereto for the purpose of securing 
grant funds, and to implement and carry out the project identified in the grant 
application. 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  14 
 

File Code No.  250.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  May 14, 2013 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Fiscal Year 2013 Third Quarter Review 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in relation to 

budget for the nine months ended March 31, 2013;  
 
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements for the Nine Months 

Ended March 31, 2013; and 
 
C. Approve the proposed third quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2013 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the schedule of Proposed 
Third Quarter Adjustments. 

 
DISCUSSION:   
 
Each month, staff presents the interim financial statements (Attachment 1) showing the 
status of revenues and expenditures in relation to budget for each of the City’s Funds. 
Each quarter, the interim financial statements are expanded to include a detailed 
narrative analysis of the General Fund and Enterprise Funds. This narrative analysis is 
included in Attachment 2.  
 
In addition to the third quarter budget analysis, staff is bringing forward recommended 
adjustments for City Council approval. These adjustments are the result of new 
information and/or unanticipated events that occurred since the adoption of the budget 
in June 2012.  Attachment 3 includes the proposed adjustments to the current year 
budget. A discussion of each is presented below. 
 
General Fund 
 
Fire Department 
 
The Fire Department incurred $46,430 in overtime, tuition and travel costs to send 
firefighters to off-site training courses during fiscal year 2013.  These costs were 



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2013 Third Quarter Review 
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 

 

reimbursed through a training grant administered by the County of Santa Barbara.  Staff 
is requesting an increase to estimated revenues and appropriations by $46,430 to cover 
the costs associated with the off-site training courses. 
 
Public Works Department 
 
The Public Works Department is currently performing a soil remediation project at 101 
State Street.  During the excavation process, the scope of work was increased due to 
unanticipated contamination in the street surrounding utilities which are scheduled to be 
replaced by the La Entrada Project in May 2013. The increase in the scope of work 
requires additional funding beyond the original project budget.  Staff is requesting an 
increase in appropriations of $70,000 in the General Fund from a transfer of available 
reserves in the Utility Undergrounding Fund for the Environmental Compliance 
Program. 
 
Community Development Department 
 
In Fiscal Year 2006, the City Redevelopment Agency received an in-lieu mitigation fee, 
hereafter referred to as Overnight Accommodation Mitigation funds, for the loss of 
previously existing lower cost overnight visitor accommodation services at the California 
Hotel. The funds are intended to be used to subsidize or encourage the development of 
new, or the maintenance or preservation of existing, lower cost visitor-serving 
accommodations.  Upon dissolution of the City Redevelopment Agency in Fiscal Year 
2012, the Overnight Accommodation Mitigation funds were transferred into the 
Successor Agency Fund and subsequently transferred to the City Affordable Housing 
Fund.  Staff has determined that these funds are better accounted for in the General 
Fund and reserved for the aforementioned purpose.  Therefore, staff recommends 
transferring the $1,224,867 balance in the Overnight Mitigation Fund account, and 
moving the year-to-date revenues and expenditures related to this account in the 
amount of $28,219 and $58,687, respectively, to the General Fund (Community 
Development Department).  
 
General Government 
 
The City has received a total of $3,496,581 in one-time, unbudgeted revenues in the 
General Fund through April 30, 2013. Of this total, $1,130,771 represents a 
reimbursement from the County of Santa Barbara for property tax administration fees 
overcharged from Fiscal Years 2006 through 2011. The balance of $2,365,810 is the 
City’s share of property tax increment funds previously held by the former City 
Redevelopment Agency that were paid to the County and allocated to all taxing 
agencies within the City.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2013 Third Quarter Review 
May 14, 2013 
Page 3 

 

On February 2012, Council approved the use of $277,000 of the $2,365,810 one-time 
property tax revenues to pay for estimated design costs for the 9-11 Call Center Project, 
leaving a balance of $2,088,810.  
 
In the summer, staff will be returning to Council to discuss the potential use, such as for 
capital, of these and other anticipated one-time revenues. As such, staff recommends 
transferring the property tax administration fees and the balance of the property tax 
revenues, totaling $3,219,581, to the General Fund Capital Outlay Fund. 
 
Utility Undergrounding Fund and Streets Fund 
 
Public Works Department 
 
1. There are $11,535 in available reserves and $26,539 in appropriated but unspent 

capital funds, for a total of $38,074, in the Utility Undergrounding Fund.  Public 
Works intends to close the Fund at the end of Fiscal Year 2013.  Therefore, staff is 
requesting that these funds be transferred to the Streets Fund for the Zone 6 
Pavement Preparation contract.  
 

2. During the third quarter, Staff identified the completed Cabrillo/Anacapa Intersection 
Improvement Project in the Streets Fund with remaining appropriations totaling 
$52,824. Staff recommends these remaining appropriations be transferred to the 
new HSIP Traffic Signal Safety Project in the Streets Fund to cover design costs and 
the City’s matching portion of the project costs.  The project will receive grant 
funding from the Highway Safety Improvement Program in Fiscal Year 2014. 

 
 
Streets Grant Capital Fund 
 
The Public Works Department applied for additional grant funding from the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA) to fund several current projects and two new projects.  
During Fiscal Year 2013, Public Works received notification from FHWA of grant 
approval in the amount of $2,302,300.  As such, Staff is recommending that the 
$2,302,300 in grant funds be appropriated to the following two new projects and four 
existing projects in the Streets Grants Capital Fund: 
 

1. The New Bridge Preventative Maintenance Project – Phase II - $82,072 
2. The New Anapamu Street Bridge Replacement Project - $700,000 
3. The Cota Street Bridge Replacement Project - $597,578 
4. The Cabrillo at Mission Creek Bridge Project - $480,000 
5. The De La Guerra Street Bridge Replacement Project - $221,325 
6. The Gutierrez Street Bridge Replacement Project - $221,325 

 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2013 Third Quarter Review 
May 14, 2013 
Page 4 

 

Measure D and Measure A Funds 
 
The Public Works Department will begin a significant project to perform pavement 
maintenance in the City, referred to as the Zone 6 Pavement Preparation and 
Maintenance contract.  In anticipation of this contract, the department has identified 
unused capital project funds, additional revenues and reserves in Measure D and 
Measure A Funds that are available for use.  Staff is requesting to appropriate 
$124,911, of which $12,493 would be funded from revenues and $112,418 from 
available reserves, to the Zone 6 Pavement Preparation and Maintenance contracts in 
the Measure D Fund.  Staff is also requesting to appropriate $725,463 from reserves in 
the Measure A Fund for the Zone 6 Pavement Preparation and Maintenance contracts.  
 
Golf Course Capital and Fleet Replacement Funds 
 
1. The Parks and Recreation Department has identified the need for golf course 

maintenance equipment, such as mowers and light utility vehicles, in the amount of 
$350,000 to replace aging and broken equipment.  The replacement of the 
maintenance equipment will reduce annual maintenance and repair costs and 
improve staff efficiencies with regard to golf course maintenance.    

 
Due to limited reserves in the Golf Course Operating and Capital Funds, staff has 
requested a loan from the Fleet Replacement Fund in the amount of $275,000 to 
provide the necessary additional funds to purchase the maintenance equipment in 
the current fiscal year.   The Golf loan will have a term of 5 years at 3% interest with 
repayments scheduled to begin in fiscal year 2014.  Staff is requesting approval of 
the loan and an adjustment to both the Golf Course and Fleet Replacement Funds’ 
budgets for this loan. 

 
2. An existing Parking Enforcement Officer (PEO) scooter that was scheduled and 

budgeted for replacement in Fiscal Year 2014 has been experiencing technical 
difficulties requiring costly repairs.  Staff recommends an additional appropriation of 
$35,000 for the purchase of the Parking Enforcement Office scooter in Fiscal Year 
2013 from reserves in the Fleet Replacement Fund.   

 
As the $35,000 is budgeted in Fiscal Year 2014, staff will recommend adjusting the 
Fiscal Year 2014 budget prior to adoption for this change.   

 
Water and Wastewater Capital Funds 
 
The Public Works Department has analyzed individual capital project needs in the 
Water and Wastewater Funds to determine the need for any adjustments. Staff is 
recommending the transfer of $741,769 of unspent appropriations in the Rehab 
Aeration Basin Project in the Water Capital Fund to the same project in the Wastewater 
Capital Fund.  This project was originally budgeted in both funds as it benefits both the 



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2013 Third Quarter Review 
May 14, 2013 
Page 5 

 

Wastewater and Water utilities; however, the requested transfer will enable staff to 
better manage and track expenditures out of one fund.  

 
  

 
Airport Capital and Airport Grants Funds 
 
The Federal Aviation Authority (FAA) awards Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grant 
funds based on bid after the completion of the design and permitting process.  As a 
result, the costs to design, permit and bid FAA capital projects are budgeted and spent 
out of the Airport Capital Fund.  Once FAA grant funding is received for construction of 
the project into the Airport Grants Fund, the Airport Capital Fund is reimbursed for the 
expended design, permitting and bidding costs.  During the current fiscal year, the 
Airport Grants Fund received FAA funding in the amount of $109,530 which Staff is 
requesting be used to reimburse the Airport Capital Fund, resulting in an increase in 
appropriations and revenues of $109,530 in the Airport Capital Fund. 
 
Waterfront Harbor Preservation Capital and Waterfront Capital Funds 
 
During the third quarter of Fiscal Year 2013, the Waterfront Department identified three 
projects in the Waterfront Capital Fund that incurred additional costs due to either an 
increase in the scope of work for each project or unanticipated needs.  Staff is 
recommending the following increase in appropriations for capital projects in the 
Waterfront Capital Fund from a transfer in available reserves in the Waterfront Harbor 
Preservation Capital Fund: 
 
1. $14,000 for the Stearns Wharf Annual Repair Program to provide for dive 

inspections of Stearns Wharf piles in support of the CIP Heavy Timber Replacement 
Project. 

 
2. $70,000 for the Harbor Restroom Remodel Project for engineering and construction 

work to address significant structural defects identified during the project that 
compromise public safety. 
 

3. $13,000 for the Seawall ADA Handrail and Sidewalk Replacement Project for added 
sidewalk replacement work and upgraded utility service to Waterfront business 
tenants. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2013 Third Quarter Review 
May 14, 2013 
Page 6 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Summary by Fund Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 
for the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 

2. Interim Financial Statements for the Nine Months Ended 
March 31, 2013 (Narrative Analysis) 

3. Schedule of Proposed Third Quarter Adjustments 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 



jnemes
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1







































Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 (75% of Year Elapsed) 

 

1 

3-Year Variance
YTD Average Prior Yr

Annual YTD YTD YTD Percent Bench- Prior Year To
Budget Budget * Actual Variance Rec'd mark YTD Actual

Sales & Use Tax 19,933,931$   13,495,584$ 14,152,711$ 657,127$      71.00% 67.70% 13,114,287$ 7.9%
Property Tax 24,904,503      13,738,494   13,910,255   171,761        55.85% 55.16% 12,804,564   8.6%
UUT 7,015,200        5,298,211      5,204,714      (93,497)         74.19% 75.52% 5,368,565     -3.1%
TOT 14,489,200      10,860,452   10,955,881   95,429          75.61% 74.96% 10,268,916   6.7%
Bus License 2,220,780        1,751,255      1,992,075      240,820        89.70% 78.86% 1,756,821     13.4%
Prop Trans Tax 356,180           248,007         493,951         245,944        138.68% 69.63% 273,771         80.4%
    Total Taxes 68,919,794      45,392,002   46,709,587   1,317,584     67.77% 65.86% 43,586,924   7.2%

License & Permits 208,988           156,741         138,319         (18,422)         66.19% 75.00% 162,057         -14.6%
Fines & Forfeitures 2,970,304        2,227,728      2,239,454      11,726          75.39% 75.00% 2,116,536     5.8%
Franchise Fee 3,509,700        2,619,687      2,714,122      94,435          77.33% 74.64% 2,523,299     7.6%
Use of Money & Property 1,182,904        887,178         885,252         (1,926)           74.84% 75.00% 849,131         4.3%
Intergovernmental 535,174           401,381         750,764         349,383        140.28% 75.00% 169,356         343.3%
Fee & Charges 18,693,706      14,020,280   14,039,073   18,793          75.10% 75.00% 14,607,853   -3.9%
Miscellaneous 9,339,986        7,004,989      7,731,774      726,784        82.78% 75.00% 7,372,525     4.9%
    Total Other 36,440,762      27,317,983   28,498,757   1,180,774     78.21% 27,800,758   2.5%

Total Before Budgeted 
Variances 105,360,556   72,709,986   75,208,344   2,498,358     71,387,681   

Anticipated Year-End Var 1,200,000        900,000         -                       (900,000)       0.00% 75.00% -                      0.0%

Total Revenues 106,560,556$ 73,609,986$ 75,208,344$ 1,598,358$  70.58% 69.08% 71,387,681$ 

* YTD Budget for Taxes is calculated based on a 3-year average of collections for each revenue source; for all other revenues, YTD Budget is calculated on a
  straight-line basis based on the number of months elapsed.

Summary of Revenues
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013

GENERAL FUND

Current Year Analysis Prior Year Analysis

Current Yr

General Fund Revenues 

The table below summarizes General Fund revenues for the nine months ended March 31, 
2013. For interim financial statement purposes, revenues are reported on a cash basis (i.e. 
when the funds are received).  The table below includes the budgeted totals as well as the year-
to-date (YTD) budget, which for tax revenues and franchise fees have been seasonally adjusted 
based on a 3-year average of collections through the same period. Because tax revenues are 
not collected evenly throughout the year, adjusting the year-to-date budget to reflect the unique 
collection pattern for each type of tax allows for a more meaningful comparison to year-to-date 
results. For all other revenues, the Year-to-Date Budget column represents 75% (9 months out 
of the 12 elapsed) of the annual budget column. Unlike tax revenues, these revenues tend to be 
collected more evenly throughout the year. 

 

 

As seen in the table above, total revenues are $2,498,358 above the YTD budget through 
March 31, 2013.   

 

Attachment 2 



Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 (75% of Year Elapsed) 

 

2 

Sales Taxes 

Sales tax revenue for the first quarter was $657,127 above the YTD budget. While representing 
three quarterly sales tax payments year-to-date on a cash basis, the revenues received through 
March 31, 2012 provide information for the growth in sales tax revenues earned only for the 
quarter ended December 31, 2012.  These revenues were 4.6% over those from the prior 
December. Sales tax revenues continue to show recovery from growth lost during the recession; 
however, December 2012 quarter receipts are still at the same level as sales tax receipts in the 
December quarter of fiscal year 2008.  Staff projects sales tax revenues to exceed budget by 
approximately $429,000 at year-end based on a continuation of strong growth for the remaining 
three quarters. 

Property Tax 
 
Property tax revenue was $171,761 above the YTD budget at March 31, 2013.  The Airplane 
property tax payment of approximately $389,000 is normally received in January but was 
delayed and will be received with the April property tax payment. During the first nine months of 
the year, the actual secured and unsecured property taxes exceeded staff’s budgeted growth 
estimates based on information received by the County after the start of the fiscal year and the 
City received a payment of $685,213 of one-time funds, representing the General Fund’s portion 
of the RDA and RDA Housing Funds that the City sent back to the County.   The General Fund 
will receive an additional redistribution of former RDA assets of approximately $1,788,000, 
bringing the total of one-time distributions from former RDA assets to over $2.2 million in the 
current year. Property tax revenues are projected to exceed the adopted budget by $2,672,000 
at year-end.     

Transient Occupancy Tax 

TOT revenue was $95,429 above the YTD budget at March 31, 2013, as shown on the table on 
the previous page, and 6.6% higher than the same nine-month period in the prior year.  Based 
on current projections, revenues are expected to be $171,275 above the adopted budget at 
year-end.  

Business License Tax 

Business License revenue is $240,820 above the YTD budget through the first nine months of 
the fiscal year.  The budget assumed 1% earned revenue growth in Fiscal Year 2013.  
However, due to a slight increase in business license renewals and large increases in revenue 
resulting from the business license audit program, the City has seen over 11% growth in current 
year revenues. 

Property Transfer Tax 

Property Transfer Tax revenues is $245,944 above the YTD budget at March 31, 2013.  As a 
result of greater than expected home sale growth through the first three quarters, property 
transfer tax revenues are projected to be over $215,000 above budget. A large payment related 
to increased property sales activity was received in January which has pushed revenues above 
the norm. 



Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 (75% of Year Elapsed) 

 

3 

Intergovernmental 

Intergovernmental revenue was approximately $349,000 above the YTD Budget. The largest 
component of intergovernmental revenue is mutual aid reimbursements received by the Fire 
Department for providing assistance to other agencies. The City is reimbursed for the actual 
costs of providing assistance plus an overhead factor.  The Fire Department budgeted $400,000 
in reimbursements and has received $585,000 in reimbursements as of March 31, 2012.  Fire 
Department staff are projecting $723,000 of mutual aid reimbursements for Fiscal Year 2013, 
amounting to $323,000 above the adopted budget at year-end.  
 
Fees & Service Charges 

Overall, fees and service charges are about $18,793 over the YTD budget. The table below 
provides more details on fees and service charges by department. The more significant mid-
year variances are also discussed. 

 
 
Library fees and charges were $126,846 above the YTD budget. This variance is due to a timing 
difference in receipt of the County per capita funding. All 100% of budget has been received by 
of March 31, 2013.   
 
Community Development fees and charges are approximately $124,000 below the YTD budget.  
This variance is largely due to slow growth in building-related activity charges, such as planning 
work orders fees, building permit fees, and development/site plan review fees. It is important to 
note that there are also types of building-related revenue that are performing well above 
budget—including zoning info report fees, modification review fees, and architectural board of 
review fees. 
 
Public Safety fees and charges are down approximately $94,000 over YTD budget, and down 
approximately $27,000 over the prior year.  Several revenues are down slightly this year, 
including DUI response cost recovery in the Police Department, and certain plan check fees in 
the Fire Department. 
 

Fees and Service Charges
General Fund

For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013

Percent
Annual YTD YTD Budget Received Prior Year Prior Year Percent

Department Budget Budget Actual Variance YTD YTD Variance Variance

Finance 880,301$         660,226$         685,565$        25,339$          77.9% 656,407$        29,158$         4.4%
Community Development 4,347,916        3,260,937        3,137,058       (123,879)         72.2% 2,928,088       208,970         7.1%
Parks & Recreation 2,702,253        2,026,690        1,994,286       (32,403)           73.8% 1,819,895       174,391         9.6%
Public Safety 1,120,320        840,240           745,951          (94,289)           66.6% 772,694          (26,743)          -3.5%
Public Works 5,494,682        4,121,012        4,128,630       7,618              75.1% 3,907,708       220,922         5.7%
Library 681,140           510,855           637,701          126,846          93.6% 641,694          (3,993)           -0.6%
Inter-Fund Charges 3,368,423        2,526,317        2,635,373       109,055          78.2% 3,773,213       (1,137,840)     -30.2%
Other Charges 98,671             74,003             74,508            505                75.5% 108,154          (33,646)          -31.1%

Total 18,693,706$     14,020,280$     14,039,073$    18,793$          75.1% 14,607,853$    (568,781)$      -3.9%



Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 (75% of Year Elapsed) 

 

4 

Inter-Fund charges were $109,055 above the YTD budget at mid-year.  These charges 
represent reimbursements from other City funds and departments and from other governments 
for various services.  The majority of this variance is related to cost reimbursements for 
attorney’s fees from the Redevelopment Successor Agency and SB90 reimbursements.  
Attorney fee reimbursements from the RDA Successor Agency have exceeded the YTD budget 
at March 31 by $65,000. In addition, the City received over $36,000 in unbudgeted SB90 
reimbursements in the first three quarters of the fiscal year.  
 
Anticipated Year-End Variances and Budgeted Savings from Concessions 
 
It is important to note that the table on page 1 includes $1,200,000 for anticipated year-end 
budget variances.  The $1.2 million is roughly equal to 1.1% of budgeted operating expenditures 
in the General Fund and, although budgeted as a revenue, represents staff’s estimate of the 
favorable expenditure variances (i.e. expenditures under budget) for the year. As is the case 
each year, the Anticipated Year-End Variance budgeted will not reflect any actual revenues, but 
rather favorable variances in expenditures by year-end.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 (75% of Year Elapsed) 

 

5 

 
General Fund Expenditures 

The table below summarizes the General Fund budget and year-to-date expenditures through 
March 31, 2013. The “Adjusted Annual Budget” column represents the adopted budget, 
appropriation carryovers from the prior year, and any supplemental appropriations approved by 
Council in the current year. 

As shown above, a year-to-date budget (labeled “YTD Budget”) column is included.  This 
column has been developed based on a 3-year average of expenditures in order to adjust for 
the seasonal nature of certain expenditures, such as debt service and summer recreation 
programs.  The table includes actual expenditures without encumbrances, and separate column 
for the variance after considering encumbrances.  Inclusion of encumbrances can significantly 
distort the analysis of budgeted and actual expenditures during the year. Outstanding 
encumbrances include certain appropriations that were carried forward from prior year and 
contracts or blanket purchase orders that have been executed in the current year but are 
expected to be throughout the year.  The following discussion and analysis does not include the 
impact of encumbrances.  

The year-to-date budget of $80.7 million at March 31, compared to actual expenditures of $80.1 
million, resulted in a variance of approximately $555,000.  Significant variances in departments 
are discussed below.   

Effective during the first half of fiscal year 2013, City Council approved a one-time vacation cash 
out of up to 40 hours per eligible employee.  This resulted in unbudgeted expenditures totaling 

YTD
Adjusted Variance
Annual YTD YTD Without Encum-

Department Budget Budget Actual Encumbrance brance $ %

Mayor & Council 737,693$            557,696$          557,640$         56$                   515$              (459)$               -0.1%
City Attorney 2,011,215           1,523,294         1,573,244        (49,950)            8,325             (58,275)            -2.9%
City Administrator 2,024,572           1,517,619         1,491,788        25,831              25,114           717                   0.0%
Administrative Svs. 1,733,693           1,349,853         1,237,312        112,541            18,490           94,051              5.4%
Finance 4,707,377           3,534,769         3,443,729        91,040              66,948           24,092              0.5%
Police 35,821,942         27,239,005       27,243,427      (4,422)              238,584         (243,006)          -0.7%
Fire 21,791,218         16,389,175       16,848,495      (459,320)          81,841           (541,161)          -2.5%
Public Works 7,214,777           5,408,918         5,156,981        251,937            262,720         (10,783)            -0.1%
Parks & Recreation 13,266,039         9,811,562         9,825,988        (14,426)            366,364         (380,790)          -2.9%
Library 4,678,836           3,484,797         3,227,114        257,683            159,335         98,348              2.1%
Community Development 9,434,620           7,223,145         6,829,818        393,327            174,285         219,042            2.3%
Community Promotion 3,457,636           2,634,719         2,683,566        (48,847)            -                     (48,847)            -1.4%
    Total 106,879,618$     80,674,553$     80,119,102$    555,451$          1,402,521$    (847,070)$        -0.8%

% of annual budget 75.5% 75.0% 0.5% 1.3% -0.8%

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Variance With Encumb

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES
GENERAL FUND

For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013
YTD



Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 (75% of Year Elapsed) 

 

6 

approximately $500,000 for the majority of City Departments as of March 31.  At this time staff 
believes that departmental budgets have sufficient appropriations to cover these one-time 
vacation cash outs; however, staff will closely monitor the budgets over the next several months 
to determine whether any appropriation requests to City Council may be needed.  

City Attorney expenditures are slightly over the YTD budget by approximately $50,000.  This 
variance was largely due to an unbudgeted vacation cash-out of $27,000 and office supplies 
exceeding YTD budget as a result of the City Attorney’s Office improvement remodel project.  
However, City Attorney revenues are exceeding budget at March 31 by approximately $96,000 
due to additional Successor Agency Oversight Board reimbursements for attorney fees and 
additional civil penalties for litigation settlements. Staff will closely monitor expenditures to 
determine the need for increased appropriations from these additional revenues by year-end. 

Administrative Services expenditures are below the YTD budget by approximately $113,000. 
This variance is attributed to across the board expenditure savings in supplies and services.  
Staff is projecting expenditures to be below budget at year-end. 

Police Department expenditures are slightly above the YTD budget by at March 31.  While the 
Police Department anticipated meeting budget at year-end, a small variance in the department’s 
budget during the fourth quarter will have a significant dollar impact.  Staff will be closely 
monitoring expenditures during the fourth quarter to determine the need for increased 
appropriations.  

Fire Department expenditures are above the YTD budget by approximately $459,000. This 
variance is primarily due to a one-time vacation and comp time cash out of $54,000 and 
additional mutual aid expenditures. Mutual aid expenditures relate to the cost of providing 
assistance to other locations throughout the state.  As of March 31, mutual aid expenditures 
amounted to $569,000 in comparison to budgeted mutual aid expenditures of $173,000.  
However, the Fire Department projects mutual aid reimbursement revenues, originally budgeted 
at $400,000, to exceed mutual aid expenditures by approximately $154,000.  As the high fire 
season was declared on May 1, there is the possibility of additional mutual aid activities by year-
end.  Staff will be closely monitoring mutual aid revenues and expenditures and will request an 
adjustment at year-end to record the total revenues and appropriations for all fiscal year 2013 
mutual aid activities. In addition, staff is requesting an additional $46,000 increase in 
appropriations from additional revenues for training expenditures.  Staff will be closely 
monitoring all expenditures during the fourth quarter to determine the need for any other 
additional appropriations by year-end.  

Library expenditures are below the YTD budget by approximately $258,000. This variance is 
primarily due to several hourly vacancies, the retirement of a full time position that remains 
unfilled and reduced professional services needs. Staff anticipates expenditures savings of 
approximately $150,000 at year-end.  

Community Development expenditures are below YTD budget by approximately $393,000.  
This variance is largely attributed to salary savings from medical leaves of absence, two 
vacancies and a voluntary reduction from full-time to part-time hours for one employee.  In 
addition, commission stipends and special project expenditures are below budget at March 31.  
Staff is a projecting a revenue shortfall at year-end of approximately $160,000; however, it is 
anticipated that expenditure savings will cover this shortfall at June 30.  



Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 (75% of Year Elapsed) 

 

7 

Enterprise Fund Revenues and Expenses 

Unlike the General Fund, which relies primarily on taxes to subsidize programs and services, 
Enterprise Fund operations are financed primarily from user fees and other non-tax revenues. 
The table below summarizes Enterprise Fund revenues and expenses through March 31, 2013, 
with a comparison to the current year budget and prior year expenses through the first six 
months. Note that the “YTD Budget” column has been calculated based on a 3-year average 
collection rate through March 31st. This rate, which is shown as a percentage in the “3 Year 
Average” column, has been applied to the annual budget amount to arrive at the Year-to-Date 
Budget. This approach is used in recognition that enterprise fund revenues and certain 
expenses are seasonally affected and are not necessarily received or incurred evenly 
throughout the year.     

 

 

 
Annual YTD YTD YTD YTD 3 Year YTD %
Budget Budget * Actual Variance Percent Average Actual Variance

Water Fund

Revenues 36,392,362$      27,163,259$     29,542,581$    2,379,322$      81.2% 74.6% 26,280,863$    12.4%

Expenses 35,143,747        26,238,322       23,088,489     3,149,833        65.7% 74.7% 28,170,742      -18.0%

Wastewater Fund

Revenues 20,257,200        15,389,395       15,962,840     573,445           78.8% 76.0% 12,487,571      27.8%

Expenses 17,369,170        12,139,313       10,865,909     1,273,404        62.6% 69.9% 11,695,852      -7.1%

Downtown Parking Fund

Revenues 7,163,539         5,328,240        5,761,966       433,726           80.4% 74.4% 5,680,015        1.4%

Expenses 7,905,307         5,863,366        5,635,791       227,575           71.3% 74.2% 5,471,420        3.0%

Airport Fund

Revenues 14,774,556        10,868,163       11,352,776     484,613           76.8% 73.6% 10,749,726      5.6%

Expenses 16,334,202        10,520,860       10,508,926     11,934            64.3% 64.4% 9,946,080        5.7%

Golf Fund

Revenues 1,872,903         1,307,848        1,258,259       (49,589)           67.2% 69.8% 1,392,260        -9.6%

Expenses 1,923,510         1,465,522        1,502,405       (36,883)           78.1% 76.2% 1,429,428        5.1%

Waterfront Fund

Revenues 12,203,518        9,184,368        9,473,515       289,147           77.6% 75.3% 9,475,105        0.0%

Expenses 11,981,963        8,721,671        8,468,585       253,086           70.7% 72.8% 9,379,886        -9.7%

* The YTD Budget column has been calculated based on a 3-year average of collections for revenues, and of payments made for expenses
through March 31, which has been applied to the annual budget.

SUMMARY OF REVENUES & EXPENSES
Six Months Ended March 31, 2013

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Current Year Analysis Prior Year Analysis



Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 (75% of Year Elapsed) 

 

8 

The expenses shown in the preceding table do not include outstanding encumbrances at March 
31, 2013. Inclusion of encumbrances can significantly distort the analysis of budgeted and 
actual expenditures after nine months. Outstanding encumbrances include appropriations that 
were carried forward from prior year as part of the appropriation carryovers and contracts or 
blanket purchase orders that have been added in the current year but are expected to be spent 
over the coming months.   

The following discussion highlights some of the more significant revenue and expense 
variances of the enterprise funds, in relation to budget or prior year. 

Water Fund 

Water Fund revenues are approximately $2,379,000 above the year-to-date budget as of March 
31.  The variance is primarily due to water sales revenue being higher than projected as a result 
of increased demand during the dry season.  In addition, the Water Fund received the entire 
budgeted $2.6 million operating transfer from the Water Capital Fund during the third quarter.  
Staff anticipates revenues to exceed budget by $1,500,000 by year-end.  

Expenses for the Water Fund are below the YTD budget by approximately $3,150,000.  The 
variance is largely due to salary savings from vacancies and reduced overtime and lower than 
anticipated water treatment chemical and supplies costs, utility expenses and water purchases.  
Staff is anticipating expenses to be under budget at year-end by $3,000,000.   

Wastewater Fund 

Wastewater Fund revenues exceed the YTD budget by approximately $573,000, primarily due 
to the Wastewater Fund received the entire budgeted $3,100,000 operating transfer from the 
Wastewater Capital Fund during the third quarter.  Staff projects revenues meeting budget at 
year-end. 

Wastewater Fund expenses are approximately $1,273,000 below the YTD budget largely due to 
reduced facilities maintenance needs, lower than anticipated utility costs and various special 
projects being postponed to fiscal year 2014.  Staff anticipates expenses being under budget by 
$1,300,000at year-end.    

Downtown Parking 

Downtown Parking Fund revenues are reporting a positive variance of $434,000.  Hourly 
parking revenues have exceeded expectations due to fewer retail vacancies in the downtown 
corridor, no lot closures during the nine months of the year and the acceptance of credit cards.  
Monthly parking is also exceeding budget at March 31, primarily due to increased usage at the 
Granada Garage and City Lot 2.  Staff anticipates total revenues to exceed budget by $300,000 
at year-end. 

Downtown Parking Fund expenses are below the YTD budget by approximately $228,000.  This 
variance is primarily related to vacancies in hourly positions, one permanent vacancy and 
reduced maintenance expenses.  Staff projects expenses to be under budget at year-end by 
$300,000.  



Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 (75% of Year Elapsed) 

 

9 

Airport Fund 

Airport Fund revenues are above the YTD budget at March 31 by approximately $485,000 and 
expenses are slightly below the YTD budget.  Airport revenues are exceeding budget primarily 
due to an increase in passenger traffic, an increase in corporate aircraft traffic, higher than 
anticipated concession sales and a higher occupancy rate for commercial/industrial leases. Staff 
anticipates revenues to exceed budget by $340,000 and expenses to be under budget by 
$500,000 at year-end.  

Golf Fund 

Golf Fund revenues are $50,000 below the YTD budget for the first nine months of the fiscal 
year.  Over the last several years, the Golf Course has seen a decline in revenue and rounds 
due to a national downtrend in the sport of golf.   Golf rounds and greens fee revenues are 
tracking below budget; however, the closure of a local golf course in March 2013 is expected to 
result in additional revenues during the fourth quarter.  Staff is projecting a revenue shortfall of 
approximately $32,000 at year-end.  

Golf Fund expenses are $37,000 above the YTD budget at March 31.  This variance was 
primarily due to a one-time vacation cash out of $13,000, higher than anticipated water costs 
during the dry season and all equipment purchases occurring in the first nine months.  Staff is 
anticipating savings during the fourth quarter due to a vacancy in one permanent position and a 
reduction in hours for hourly staff.  At year-end, staff is projecting savings of approximately 
$32,000 which will offset the anticipated revenue shortfall.  

Waterfront Fund 

Waterfront Fund revenues are $289,000 above the YTD budget.  This variance is primarily due 
to higher than anticipated parking revenues resulting from the warm weather during the first half 
of the fiscal year and an increase in visitor fees and slip transfers. Additional Property 
Management program revenues are anticipated in the fourth quarter due to cruise ship activity 
scheduled prior to year-end. Staff anticipates total revenues to exceed budget at year-end by 
$272,000.  

Waterfront Fund expenses are $253,000 below the YTD budget for the first nine months of the 
fiscal year. This variance is primarily due to salary savings resulting from the implementation of 
the parking payment stations and lower than anticipated professional audit services costs.  Staff 
projects expenses to be under budget by approximately $200,000 at year-end.   

 

 
 



Attachment 3
City of Santa Barbara

Interim Financial Statements for the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013
Proposed Third Quarter Adjustments

Increase
Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)
Appropriations Revenues Reserves

GENERAL FUND

Fire Department
County of Santa Barbara training Grant -$                 46,430$           46,430$             
Off-site Training Courses 46,430             -                   (46,430)             

Public Works
Transfer from Utility Undergrounding for Environmental Compliance -                   70,000             70,000               
Increase Budget for Environmental Compliance Program at 101 State St. 70,000             -                   (70,000)             

Community Development
Transfer Overnight Accommodation Cash from Affordable Housing -                   1,224,867         1,224,867          
Transfer Overnight Accom. Rev/Exp Budget from Affordable Housing 58,687             28,219             (30,468)             

Non-Departmental
Transfer of One-Time Funds to Capital Outlay Fund: 
    Distribution of RDA Assets (City Share) 2,088,810        -                   (2,088,810)        
    Reimbursement of Property Tax Admin Fees from County of SB 1,130,771        -                   (1,130,771)        

Total General Fund 3,219,581$      -$                 (3,219,581)$       

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND

Transfer Redistribution of RDA Asset Revenues from General Fund -$                 3,219,581$       3,219,581$        

Total Capital Outlay Fund -$                 3,219,581$       3,219,581$        

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

City Affordable Housing Fund (122)
Transfer Overnight Accommodation Cash Balance to General Fund 1,224,867$      -$                 (1,224,867)$       
Transfer Overnight Accommodation Rev/Exp Budget to General Fund (58,687)            (28,219)            30,468               

Total City Affordable Housing Fund 1,166,181$      (28,219)$          (1,194,399)$       

Utility Undergrounding Fund (148)
Transfer Funds to General Fd. for Environmental Compliance Program 70,000$           -$                 (70,000)$           
Adjust Capital Project Budget - Cliff Drive Engineering Services (26,539)            -                   26,539               
Transfer funds to Streets Operating for Zone 6 Pavement Preparation 38,074             -                   (38,074)             

Total Utility Undergrounding Fund 81,535$           -$                 (81,535)$           

Streets Fund (331)
Transfer Funds from Utility Undergrounding for Zone 6 Pavement Prep. -$                 38,074$           38,074$             
Increase Budget for Zone 6 Pavement Preparation 38,074             -                   (38,074)             
Close Cabrillo / Anacapa Intersection Improvement Project (52,824)            -                   52,824               
New HSIP Traffic Signal Safety Project 52,824             -                   (52,824)             

Total Streets Fund 38,074$           38,074$           -$                  

1



Increase
Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)
Appropriations Revenues Reserves

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (cont.)

Streets Grant Capital Fund (333)
Increase Revenues for New Federal Highway Administration Grant Funds -$                 2,302,300$       2,302,300$        
Adjust Capital Project Budgets:

New Bridge Preventative Maintenance Project - Phase 2 82,072             -                   (82,072)             
New Anapamu Street Bridge Replacement Project 700,000           -                   (700,000)           
Increase Budget for Cota Street Bridge Replacement Project 597,578           -                   (597,578)           
Increase Budget for Cabrillo at Mission Creek Bridge Project 480,000           -                   (480,000)           
Increase Budget for De La Guerra St. Bridge Replacement Project 221,325           -                   (221,325)           
Increase Budget for Gutierrez Bridge Replacement Project 221,325           -                   (221,325)           

Total Streets Grant Capital Fund 2,302,300$      2,302,300$       -$                  

Measure D Fund (341)
Interest Revenue Received -$                 12,493$           12,493$             
Zone 6 Pavement Preparation Contract 124,911           -                   (124,911)           

Total Measure D Fund 124,911$         12,493$           (112,418)$         

Measure A Fund (342)
Zone 6 Pavement Preparation Contract 725,463$         -$                 (725,463)$         

Total Measure a Fund 725,463$         -$                 (725,463)$         

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Golf Course Capital Fund (452)
Transfer from Fleet Replacement for Maintenance Equipment Loan -$                 275,000$          275,000$           
Golf Maintenance Equipment 275,000           -                   (275,000)           

Total Golf Course Capital Fund 275,000$         275,000$          -$                  

Water Capital Fund (412)
Reduce Budget for Rehab Aeration Basin Project (741,769)          -                   741,769             
Transfer to Wastewater Capital for Rehab Aeration Basin Project 741,769           (741,769)           

Total Wastewater Operating Fund -$                 -$                 -$                  

Wastewater Capital Fund (422)
Transfer from Water Capital for Rehab Aeration Basin Project -$                 741,769$          741,769$           
Adjust Capital Project Budgets:

Increase Budget for Rehab Aeration Basin Project 741,769           -                   (741,769)           
Total Wastewater Capital Fund 741,769$         741,769$          -$                  

Airport Capital Fund (442)
Transfer from Airport Grants for Reimbursement of Design Services -$                 109,530$          109,530$           
Professional services - FAA Design Development 109,530           -                   (109,530)           

Total Airport Capital Fund 109,530$         109,530$          -$                  

Airport Grants Fund (443)
Non-Building Improvements - FAA Design Development (109,530)$        -$                 109,530$           
Transfer to Airport Capital for Reimbursement of Design Services 109,530           -                   (109,530)           

Total Airport Grants Funds -$                 -$                 -$                  

2



Increase
Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)
Appropriations Revenues Reserves

ENTERPRISE FUNDS (cont.)

Waterfront Harbor Preservation Capital Res. Fund (622)
Transfer Funds to Capital Fund for Stearns Wharf Repair Program 14,000$           -$                 (14,000)$           
Transfer Funds to Capital Fund for Harbor Restroom Remodel 70,000             -                   (70,000)             
Transfer Funds to Capital Fund for Seawall ADA Handrail/Sidewalk 13,000             -                   (13,000)             

Total Waterfront Preservation Capital Res. Fund 97,000$           -$                 (97,000)$           

Waterfront Capital Fund (623)
Transfer from Harbor Pres. Fund for Stearns Wharf Repair Program -$                 14,000$           14,000$             
Increase Budget for Stearns Wharf Annual Repair Program 14,000             -                   (14,000)             
Transfer from Harbor Pres. Fund for Harbor Restroom Remodel -                   70,000             70,000               
Increase Budget for Harbor Restroom Remodel 70,000             -                   (70,000)             
Transfer from Harbor Pres. Fund for Seawall ADA Handrail/Sidewalk -                   13,000             13,000               
Increase Budget for Seawall ADA Handrail & Sidewalk Replacement 13,000             -                   (13,000)             

Total Waterfront Capital Fund 97,000$           97,000$           -$                  

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Fleet Replacement Fund (512)
Transfer to Golf Capital Fund for Maintenance Equipment Loan 275,000$         -$                 (275,000)$         
Parking Enforcement Officer Scooter 35,000             -                   (35,000)             

Total Fleet Replacement Fund 310,000$         -$                 (310,000)$         

3



Agenda Item No.  15 
 

File Code No. 330.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution To Place The Exchange Of A Leased Excess Portion Of 

MacKenzie Park On The Municipal Election Ballot In November 2013 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, a Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Authorizing the Placement of a Measure on the November 2013 General 
Election Ballot to Obtain Voter Approval to Exchange 14,564 Square Feet of MacKenzie 
Park Property for 12,511 Square Feet of the Adjacent U.S. Army Reserve Center 
Property, as Required by City Charter Section 520.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed resolution by Council acknowledges the various City obligations set forth 
in two 99-year leases approved by Council in May 1963 between the City, the United 
States of America (USA), and the U.S. Army (Army), by authorizing a November 2013 
ballot measure seeking voter approval for a land exchange with the Army in connection 
with MacKenzie Park and the Fremont Army Reserve Center. The resolution and 
proposed ballot measure will declare a portion of MacKenzie Park excess real property, 
and eligible for exchange for a portion of U.S. Army Reserve Center property. The 
underlying real property is the now-existing improved frontage of State Street, and also 
underlying a portion of MacKenzie Park. (See Attachments 1 and 2.) Following voter 
approval of the proposed ballot measure, a City ordinance will be prepared and 
submitted to Council to authorize the exchange of the deeds to convey the identified 
lands between the City and the USA. 
 
On April 24, 2013, in accordance with Section 809 of the Santa Barbara City Charter, the 
Parks and Recreation Commission received a report concerning the proposed exchange 
of the affected lease portion of MacKenzie Park for the affected lease portion of the Army 
Reserve Center property. Accordingly, the Parks and Recreation Commission has 
expressed support for Council to authorize the placement of a measure on the November 
2013 City General Election ballot. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution To Place The Exchange Of A Leased Excess Portion Of Mackenzie Park On 
The Municipal Election Ballot In November 2013  
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 
In 1956, the City acquired the land now known as MacKenzie Park from the USA. At 
about the same time, the Army began the development of the adjacent Fremont Army 
Reserve Center. Subsequently, in the period between 1961 - 1964, the City, the USA, 
and the Army negotiated two 99-year lease agreements. This allowed the City to widen 
State Street (14 feet wider) along the frontage of the Army Reserve Center, and allowed 
the City,  and the Army to revise the property lines between MacKenzie Park and the 
Army Reserve Center property, in order to accommodate the optimum development of 
the Army Reserve Center and MacKenzie Park. The City  and the Army considered the 
nearly similar size lease areas to have equal value and, as a result no consideration 
was involved. As a condition of the two 99-year lease agreements approved by Council 
(See Attachment 3), the City and the Army provided for the City to process a ballot 
measure for the purpose of obtaining voter approval for the City’s exchange of the Park 
land. Following voter approval, it was planned that the City and the Army would 
exchange deeds transferring the fee ownership of the respective lease areas. However, 
for unknown reasons, the City ballot measure was never put on any municipal ballot to 
approve the exchange. 
 
If the voters do not approve the ballot measure, the leases provide that the properties 
revert to the prior boundaries at the conclusion of the approved 99-year leases. The 
current land uses will continue with the same Park and (State) street uses in effect until 
the conclusion of the term of the leases in 2060.  
 
FUTURE ACTIONS: 
 
Subject to voter approval of the proposed exchange of the affected portion of 
MacKenzie Park, the necessary documents will be prepared to accomplish the 
proposed bi-lateral fee title exchange of land with the USA. These documents may 
include, among  others, deeds, ordinances, resolutions, certificates, and any others 
deemed necessary by the City Attorney. All such documents will be submitted and 
recommended to Council at the appropriate time. 
 
The attached Vicinity Map (Attachment 1) depicts the location of a City building a small 
portion of which is possibly located on and over the proposed new boundary, and there 
is possibly also a City water line and a sewer line located within the areas described. A 
survey is planned to answer these questions. Subject to voter approval of the proposed 
land exchange, any issues that have not yet been investigated and must be addressed 
will be provided for in the final documents which will be submitted to Council with 
recommendations for actions to implement the land exchange. The follow-up 
documentation may include the City’s reservation of easements for City waterlines and 
sewer lines, and a license necessary to address the possible building encroachment, if 
it is required. 
 
At the time Council adopts a resolution to accept the affected portion of the U.S. Army 
Reserve Property, it may also be recommended that Council dedicate a public street 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolution To Place The Exchange Of A Leased Excess Portion Of Mackenzie Park On 
The Municipal Election Ballot In November 2013  
May 14, 2013 
Page 3 

 

easement for the existing frontage portion of State Street, and also dedicate the new 
portion of MacKenzie Park located on the portions of U.S. Army Reserve Center 
property. Such dedications will be included in the resolution adopted to accept the land 
to be conveyed by the USA to the City. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1) Vicinity Map – MacKenzie Park 
 2) Assessors Map 
 3) Council Agenda Report dated May 27, 1963 
 
PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer/DI/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



U.S. ARMY

RESERVE CENTER

Building

Building

Building

STATE ST.

L
A

S
 P

O
S

IT
A

S
 R

D
.

City of Santa Barbara

Street ROW

MacKenzie Park

City of Santa Barbara

land leased to the

U.S. Army

U.S. Army

land leased to the 

City of Santa Barbara

U.S.Army land

U.S. Army land
Leased to City of Santa Barbara

City of Santa Barbara land

City of Santa Barbara land
Leased to U.S. Army

Street ROW

ATTTACHMENT 1



N
—

.10;

St

STATE

PUEBLO LANDS

a
t

Z? CodeC LLE J-L.__ 51—I ICLoAb
/

SI:

L”a Yrcet

S. 0

ATTACHMENT 2



.
.

:<
I.’

.

C

fl
J
r
t
>

D
r
f
l
f
l
4

C
c
t
’
r
j
4

0
m

o
c

m
m

c
g
-
n

Z
Z

t
r
O

t
V

C
)
ø
r
I
t
F

C
J
D

O
fl

o
-

.
-
f
l

rt
-c

fl
C

,
r

n
t

3
C

e
t

rt
X

r
-

•
C

f
l
f
l
0
C

_
f
l
.
r

—
.

2
I
t
n
a

f
r
b
ø

C
,

a
ri

‘
t
f
l
i
.
D

—
r

e
L

t
C

.
d

H
-

r
i’

—
—

’
z
:-

-
-
,-

,:
‘
:

r
Z

s
’
Z

>
>

c
U

.
3
t
n
W

Q
N

t
f
l
N

r
-
.
.

O
n
)

c
r
L

H
n

tr
N

O
C

r
?
O

O
Z

S
O

b
fl

n
o

O
O

O
c

f
in

*
.m

j
’

C
fl

.:
5

tt
.

C
q

F
h
C

f
H

“
t

fl
C

O
r
t:

T
o

N
‘
<

•
t

41
I
C

t
•

N
.
o
:

-t
r
-
-
-
v
_
,
>

L
r

:5
t
Y

n
t

—
-3

0
et

Z
_
5
c
—

f
l
o

r
i
C

D
t
C

’
-
‘

C
r

c
0
c

(
:
‘
—

r
D

L
C

f
r
’
•
p
H

L
o
r

o
—

2
t
.

ft
t

1
f
1

c
D

c
tr

t
•
-

C
r

C
rp

4
C

r
e

p3
t
(
t
t

a
<

Q
.
e
•
t
t
I
1

3
a

N
h
n
n
o

-
n
’
1
s

r
&

i
<

b
N

O
t
n
)
r

Pt
t

0
c
m

’
-
•
n

;
0
’

,
-
;
,
t
-
.
-
1
t

.
c
f
l
N

fl
—

z
r

—
—

:
—

‘
c
z
:

C
—

C
U

r
c

1
0
f
l

f
l
-
•
f
t

-

N
V

Q
:
r
t

n
o

0
0

-
—

Jo
C

a
z
;

a
•
t
O

3
t

1
1
-
b
C

l
r
t
n

r
o
o
,

r
t
o
-
C

r
t—

c
D

H
im

F
,

<
3

I
t
r
,
t
t
,
z
t
m

0
L

-
h
tf

l
0
F

,
’
(
r

H
i

f
l

t
>

0
C

i
j
Z

1
r
D

h
F

,
0
u
’
t3

n
J
.
O

N
W

0
0

•
L

tD
c
a
n

06
it

fl
I

0
0

:3
C

fl
th

S
—

C
c
i
D

n
c

r
C

f
l.

r
t
r

r
?
n
,
n
n
s
?
n
J
r
n
1

‘
O

C
H

i
ft

C
:—

C
‘3

!t
•
t
:
3
C

3
-

—
N

C
.C

-1
,r

u
r
n
-

,
C

I
t
F

(
)
a
-
.
c
F

t
C

y
v
1

*
t
t
o

o
C

’
r
t

F
1
0
-t

--
,

t
—

r
:
:

-
p
-
>

’
-

.
r
t
C

n
it

m
0
-W

•
f
lC

)
f
lS

i
f
l
t
’

C
,1

n
a
—

h
c
t

tf
lc

fl
H

t
f
lf

lr
tr

n
r
t
f
l

:3
c
t

r
n

N
Q

j
t

r
I
’
0

S
i
F

t
N

n
.

C
3
H

i0
O

*
—

i-
h

-
r
?
[
t
t
t
f
l

C
r
H

3
t

-
.t

r
ff

t’
3
-t

:3
c
.
n
e

C
rn

q
t-

D
L

--
—

z
<

0
1

—
—

.r
r
i
-
.
.

m
m

N
t

n
7
:.

•
.

_
,O

ø
r

-.
3

‘
,
t
.

i
r
,
.
C

t
r

Ct
H

•’
P

r
tf

0
Pt

;:
C

tt
o

t
r
t
r
Q

•
C

C
r
N

n
O

E
t
O

-
f
l
3

)
n
C

t
a
H

:3
(
0
0

Pt
c
fl

C
Z

r
)
_
-

s
f
3
i

0
t
1

H
i

•
•
i
•
•
r
•

C
‘c

d
_
•
•

C
—

r
-
t

Z
r-

,—
0
—

o
m
0
-

•
-

C—
Z

C
:
3
i
C

_
j
_

-
:t

,
o
n
-

(
C

f
l)

(3
-
•

H
n
r
n
-
:

.0
(0

z
2

-t
0
tT

h
(
c
C

-
•

t
C:

1
!i;

C
c
p
0
c
t

r
m

o
_
•

(•
tO

)W
C

C
t
C

H
-
f
l
0
6

C
F

,
i
3
.

i1
1

N
-N

fl
i
:
P

t
t

f
l3

•
0

C
c
o
•

(
t3

0
0
0
6

0.
C

-*
(b

F
,

fl
0
6
N

1
:3

-
-
n

0
.

j:
It

—
‘

C
0

ATTACHMENT 3

1



C

Mr. &qard L. .a,bot t a.:or May 2?, 1%3

Six copier cf the xcapts of the minutes of the CIty of
Council teett aithoriting onecutora
should also he furnished. Th€ copies of
rr,rItn lessee should be retained for our
executed copies will be sent to the CLty

±r tniments are die tr jyuted

rrnwr
Public Worka Director

Santa Zat•r.
of the Leis
the Creeer,t
files, P1iv
it tna tr’te tue

‘_

\. /

I--

2



May 14, 1963

SUBJECT: Exchange of teasehald US.AR. sara (ArvrState Street Widening - Dc La Vina to OntareSPLRN - M X SPLRC - L

The original and four copies each of the ?ro’?Osec C :tieasc
(Eng. Form 136]) and of the proposed inlease (Eng. Form 856)
should be signed by the prcer City auchorities c prode for
the proposed exchange of land with the City of Santa Barbara.
California at the U.S. Army Reserve Cntr and U. S. Government.

2 - The original and three copies of the, agreement should be executed
dated as the date of execution and returned 18:

Mr. I.. . Otterness. Chief, Managenent -& 5p2531 EranchReal Estate Division
U. S. Any En. 05st. Los AngelesCorps of Engineers
P. 0. Eox 17277 roy Station
Los Angeles 17, California

3 - Six (6) copies of the excerpts from the minutes of the City of
Santa Barbara Council Meeting aLrhor’zLng exeCution Df the leases
should be also furnished.

4 - The copies of the agreement marked ‘‘tessee’ s’ouLd be reta ne for
our tiles. Fully executed copies will be Sent to us at the time
the instruments are distributed.

5 - Under conditions added No- 27’’ it should he noted that the lessee
(City of Santa Barbara) rees to place a rneaure on the ballot at
the next municipal election (ay 1965) authorizing a bilateral
fee title trade of the parcels referenced in Condition No. 26
thereof, for the goiernaent-owned land included ir. this lease.
(The City Water Deportment also would like to add some parcela on
the next’ballot.)

If the exchange is authorized, this lease shall terminate wheo
deeds to each property are racordecL. othenise the said leases
vii) continue in effect.

3



6 — (a) fence and sprinkler sygter have been instI1eá. Refer to

letter in file dated Aoril 9, 1962 &.:, bid from Srifflr &

Morgar.;ated May 8, 1961.

(b) Street imprDvements located in area covered by lease will or

have been made cost free to U. S. Government.

7 - In parcel i there is at present a 6’’ CI. water main needed by

the City Wat€r Department to service -he immediate area. It is

c Pl,t cf Noff General HoaDita Tract C-S-JIDR dated

ay 8, 1953.

If the City were to acquire the parcels by fee title, then we would

have cc reserve an easeztenc far the Cay water tam jr the new

deed made cut to the U. S. Government.

Refer to inter-office memo dated May 14, 1963 from Clyde Richardson,

IIater Department S to City Attorney.

- The Lease arngement shouLd be completed as soon as possible.

ttrer dated October 25, 96l -

due to right of entry could be secured on the basis that the

Lease doccents ever.ual1c will be apsravad in their entirety’

Further — refer to letter dated November 27, 1961 —

‘This right of entry is granted subject to the terms and

conditions of proposed 99 year outlease to the City of the

Government-owned land and the 99 year lease o’J ty-owned

land to the Government’ (Etc.)

Also refer to letter dated Decenber 12. c.,.

- Hartolore

ins

4



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 
 
   A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE PLACEMENT 
OF A MEASURE ON THE NOVEMBER 2013 
GENERAL ELECTION BALLOT TO OBTAIN VOTER 
APPROVAL TO EXCHANGE 14,564 SQUARE FEET 
OF MACKENZIE PARK PROPERTY FOR 12,511 
SQUARE FEET OF THE ADJACENT U.S. ARMY 
RESERVE CENTER PROPERTY, AS REQUIRED BY 
CITY CHARTER SECTION 520. 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The City of Santa Barbara hereby acknowledges the terms and conditions of that 
certain Land Lease between the City of Santa Barbara (City) and the United States of America 
(USA), dated December 12, 1961, and ending on December 11, 2060, in which the City leased to 
the USA approximately 14,564 square feet (0.33 acre) of City land now known as MacKenzie 
Park, adjacent to the U.S. Army Reserve Center, located at 3237 State Street. 
 
SECTION 2. The City of Santa Barbara hereby acknowledges the terms and conditions of that 
certain Lease between the Secretary of the Army (U.S. Army) and the City of Santa Barbara 
(City), beginning on December 12, 1961, and ending on December 11, 2060, in which the U.S. 
Army leased to the City a portion of the U.S. Army Reserve Center property, consisting of 
approximately 12,511 square feet (0.287 acre) of land, for the purpose of allowing City to widen 
now-existing State Street fronting the U.S. Army Reserve Center. 
 
SECTION 3.  The City of Santa Barbara, as provided in the Land Lease with the USA, and as 
provided in the Lease with the U.S. Army, hereby authorizes the placement of a measure on the 
November 2013 municipal ballot to seek voter approval for a bilateral fee title exchange of City’s 
approximately 14,564 square feet (0.33 acre) of MacKenzie Park for the U.S. Army’s 
approximately 12,511 square feet (0.287 acre) of the U.S. Army Reserve Center, including that 
portion of such land now underlying the frontage of State Street and a portion of MacKenzie Park. 
 
SECTION 4.  The City of Santa Barbara hereby declares the approximately 14,564 square feet 
(0.33 acre) portion of MacKenzie Park, as described in the Land Lease with the USA, to be 
excess and eligible for bilateral fee title exchange for the approximately 12,511 square feet 
(0.287 acre) portion of U.S. Army Reserve Center property, as described in the Lease with the 
U.S. Army, subject to voter approval of the proposed initiative on the November 2013 municipal 
ballot, and subject to required reservation(s) of any required easements for existing City water 
lines and sewer lines located on the affected portion of MacKenzie Park, if any exist. 
 
SECTION 5.  The City of Santa Barbara acknowledges that on April 24, 2013, the Parks and 
Recreation Commission of the City of Santa Barbara received a report and recommends that the 
proposed measure to authorize the bilateral fee exchange of the portion of MacKenzie Park be 
placed on  the November 2013 ballot to seek voter approval. 
 



2 
 

SECTION 6.  The City of Santa Barbara hereby acknowledges that the City’s Land Lease with 
USA and the U.S. Army’s Lease with  City have established that the values of the affected lease 
and exchange portions of MacKenzie Park and U.S. Army Reserve Center are equal and that in 
accordance with each the Land Lease and the Lease, no additional appraisals or monetary 
considerations for the respective portions to be exchanged are necessary. 
 
SECTION 7.  The City of Santa Barbara hereby declares the placement this measure upon the 
ballot and potential exchange of the subject real property to be exempt from environmental review 
pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guideline Section15312. 
 
SECTION 8.  The City of Santa Barbara hereby acknowledges that, due to the obligations set 
forth in each the existing Land Lease with USA and the existing Lease with U.S. Army, there is no 
additional requirement in this specific case to provide written notice nor to solicit response by 
other potentially interested parties that may desire to purchase or lease the affected excess 
portion of MacKenzie Park, as otherwise provided by Section 54222 of Article 8 of Chapter 5 of 
the California Government Code. 
 
SECTION 9.  If the proposed ballot measure is approved by the voters, the City of Santa Barbara 
hereby authorizes the preparation, and subsequent execution by the City Administrator, subject to 
review by the Public Works Director as to content, and subject to review and approval by the City 
Attorney as to form, of all necessary deeds, ordinances, resolutions, and documents required to 
implement the bilateral fee title exchange of the respective portions of MacKenzie Park and 
U.S. Army Reserve Center, as provided in each the Land Lease with the USA and the Lease with 
the U.S. Army. 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  16 

File Code No.  520.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Chief’s Staff, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of The Fire And Police Commission's Sixty (60) Day 

Suspension Of The Nightclub Dance Permit For Whiskey Richards 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council deny the appeal of William (Bill) Clayton, owner of Whiskey Richards 
nighclub, upholding the Fire and Police Commission’s decision to suspend the nightclub 
dance permit for Whiskey Richards for a period of 60 days.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The subject appeal involves the 60-day suspension of the nightclub dance permit for the 
establishment known as Whiskey Richards at 435 State Street, imposed by the Fire and 
Police Commission on March 28, 2013.  The applicant, Bill Clayton, subsequently 
appealed the Fire and Police Commission’s decision to suspend the dance permit and 
the imposition of the suspension was suspended pending the Council’s decision on the 
appeal.  (See Attachment 1) 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Bill Clayton (“Applicant”), owner of Whiskey Richards, was originally issued a nightclub 
dance permit in January 2008.  The following month (February 2008), City Council 
(“Council”) approved an update to Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 5.20, the City 
ordinance pertaining to dance permits.  In accordance with the revised ordinance, all 
dance permit holders are required to renew their dance permits annually with the Santa 
Barbara Police Department (“SBPD”). This renewal process provides the City the 
opportunity to review each permitted premise annually to ensure that permit holders 
continue to operate in a responsible manner, and to allow for the opportunity to address 
any concerns involving the public health, safety, and welfare.  Furthermore, in 
conjunction with the revised ordinance, a Penalty Matrix was created to provide a set 
guideline for corrective action against nightclubs found to be operating in violation of 
their dance permit, conditions of approval, or of any local or state laws.  (See 
Attachment 2.)  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Fire And Police Commission’s Sixty (60 Day Suspension Of the Nightclub 
Dance Permit For Whiskey Richards  
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 

 

In 2010, upon the first annual renewal of the Whiskey Richards dance permit, conditions 
of the permit were listed using the standard conditions established for CBD area dance 
permits: 

• Music and/or entertainment shall not be audible beyond 50 feet from the premise; 
• Rear doors and front windows must be closed but unlocked during dancing; 
• No patrons shall enter or exit through the rear doors; 
• Minimum of 3 security guards must be on duty during dancing; 
• No live entertainment, dancing, or amplifying system or device permitted on any 

patio area; 
• Permittee must police surrounding area once an hour to prevent loitering, 

particularly in rear alleyway; 
• Permittee must maintain an orderly line of patrons awaiting entry. 

 
In early 2012, during the annual renewal process for the Whiskey Richards dance 
permit that expired January 31, 2012, City staff discovered that in the previous 1-year 
period of operations, from January 31, 2011 through January 31, 2012, two citations 
were issued on separate dates to patrons whom officers witnessed openly using 
cocaine in the restroom area of the premise.  During this same time period, there were 
four additional citations issued to individuals under the age of 21 whom officers 
discovered inside Whiskey Richards. This occurred despite  Whiskey Richards 
establishment holding a “Type 48” ABC liquor license which prohibits anyone under the 
age of 21 years from entering the premise at any time.   
 
Due to the number and frequency of the aforementioned violations, staff at the Santa 
Barbara Police Department used the Penalty Matrix as a guideline for the subsequent 
actions taken to curb the trend of violations at the premise.  Accordingly, the Police 
Department approved the 2012 renewal of the nightclub dance permit for Whiskey 
Richards, but imposed four additional conditions on the permit to mitigate concerns 
regarding public health, safety, and welfare at the premise through increased on-
premise monitoring and mandatory training for security guards: 

• A restroom attendant must be stationed at the restroom area nightly from 9:00 
pm until close.  The restroom area must be checked often to ensure no illegal 
activity is occurring; 

• All security guards must complete LEADS and Responsible Beverage Server 
(RBS) Training; 

• All security guards must be currently licensed with the California Department of 
Consumer Affairs as a Proprietary Security Officer; 

• The individual, partnership, corporation, or LLC must possess a Proprietary 
Private Security Employer’s License issued by the California Department of 
Consumer Affairs. 

 
On April 25, 2012, a SBPD letter was sent to owner Bill Clayton, notifying him of the 
additional conditions placed on the permit, as well as the reasons for the imposition of 
those conditions.  The letter also stated “Furthermore, because the above citations 
indicate a concerning trend at your nightclub, should there be one more citation for 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Fire And Police Commission’s Sixty (60 Day Suspension Of the Nightclub 
Dance Permit For Whiskey Richards  
May 14, 2013 
Page 3 

 

drugs and/or patrons under the age of 21 years on premise within the next year, your 
Nightclub Dance Permit will be brought before the Fire and Police Commission with the 
recommendation that it be suspended and/or revoked.” 
 
Additionally, and in accordance with the terms of the Penalty Matrix, the letter included 
an invitation for owner Bill Clayton to take part in an “Intervention” meeting to identify 
ways to prevent future violations.   Per the letter: “The meeting would include you, 
Police Department representatives, a Fire and Police Commissioner, and a member of 
the Bar and Restaurant Committee who does not have any personal interest in your 
business.”   
Mr. Clayton opted not to take part in the proposed intervention meeting. 
 
Bill Clayton’s most recent (renewal) application for the nightclub dance permit occurred 
in December 2012.  A review of the crime statistics at the premise (for the 14-month 
period beginning one year prior to submission of renewal application through the permit 
expiration from December 2011 through January 2013) revealed a total of 8 citations 
issued to persons under 21 on the premises and a total of 3 drug-related offenses 
issued to patrons of the premises.   
 
More specifically, and within the one-year period of the most recent permit’s validity, 
from January 31, 2012 through January 31, 2013 five citations were issued to minors on 
premise, one citation issued to a patron found in possession of cocaine, and one 
citation issued to a patron openly handling marijuana in the premise: 
 

• February 9, 2012: a 19-year-old individual who showed no identification to 
security guards was able to enter the premise undetected when the security 
guard on duty left his post temporarily.  According to the report, when notified of 
the incident, the security guard apologized to SBPD officers for leaving his post. 
 
This same individual was found to be in possession of cocaine. (SBPD 2012-
10077) and  was arrested and booked for both charges. 
 

• May 4, 2012: a 20-year-old intoxicated individual was cited just outside of 
Whiskey Richards.  Officers discovered he possessed a fake ID which he 
admitted he used to gain access into Whiskey Richards. Once inside, the minor 
was served by Whiskey Richard’s staff two alcoholic drinks.  The minor was 
arrested and booked for the offense. (SBPD 2012-31225) 
 

• August 4, 2012: a 19-year-old minor used an out-of-state ID to gain entry into the 
premise.  According to Police officers, the facial features of the person and the 
person pictured on the ID were noticeably different.  Owner Bill Clayton was 
contacted by officers at the time of this incident.  The individual was issued an 
arrest citation for the offense.  (SBPD 2012-56524) 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Fire And Police Commission’s Sixty (60 Day Suspension Of the Nightclub 
Dance Permit For Whiskey Richards  
May 14, 2013 
Page 4 

 

• September 20, 2012: a 19-year old individual used a friend’s ID to enter the 
premise.  She later left Whiskey Richards and attempted to use the ID to get into 
another nightclub.  Staff at that nightclub recognized the ID as a fake and seized 
it, denying the minor entry.  The minor then returned to Whiskey Richards without 
an ID and was allowed by security staff to re-enter the premise.  Officers spoke 
with security staff at the time of the incident.  The minor was cited for two 
misdemeanor charges for the incident.  (SBPD 2012-69862) 
 

• September 27, 2012: a 17-year-old individual, working with ABC officials in a 
decoy operation, was able to enter the premise.  When asked for ID, she showed 
the bartender her real ID (showing that her age was 17) and was still served 
alcohol. The on-duty bartender at Whiskey Richards was issued an arrest citation 
for the incident.  (SBPD 2012-71472) 
 

• December 23, 2012: a patron was observed by Police officers openly using 
marijuana inside the premise. The patron was issued an arrest citation for the 
incident.  (SBPD 2012-93605) 

 
Of the above incidents, five occurred following the April 25, 2012 letter from the Santa 
Barbara Police Department to owner Bill Clayton warning that even one more drug-
related citation or any citation issued to minors on premise would result in the premise’s 
dance permit being brought before the Fire and Police Commission with a 
recommendation for suspension or revocation. 
 
On March 28, 2013, the nightclub dance permit renewal request was heard at the Fire 
and Police Commission (“the Commission”) meeting.   
 
Fire and Police Commission Action: 
 
At the Commission meeting on March 28, Police Department staff recommended that 
the nightclub dance permit for Whiskey Richards be suspended for 6 months effective 
immediately.  It was further recommended that, within the 12-month period following the 
suspension, should a citation be issued for a violation of the dance permit or dance 
ordinance, or for a minor discovered on premise, or for any drug-related offense in 
which a patron is observed by SBPD officers to be selling or using narcotics or 
marijuana within the premise, Whiskey Richards’ nightclub dance permit will be brought 
before the Fire and Police Commission no later than the next annual review with a 
recommendation that the Nightclub Dance Permit be permanently revoked. 
 
Owner Bill Clayton and business broker Matt Olufs spoke on behalf of Whiskey 
Richards in opposition to staff’s recommendation.  They presented the Commission a 
letter highlighting the premise’s security policies, noting the actions and policies of the 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC), and asserting that premise security 
staff relied up on bona fide ID when permitting persons under 21 to enter the premise.  
They disagreed with the crime statistics presented by City staff and stated that they 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Fire And Police Commission’s Sixty (60 Day Suspension Of the Nightclub 
Dance Permit For Whiskey Richards  
May 14, 2013 
Page 5 

 

have a positive relationship with the Santa Barbara Police Department’s Nightlife 
Enforcement Officer.  The appellant further claimed that he was not personally notified 
at the time of the citations. 
 
Two members of the public, Kay Morter, general manager of the Holiday Inn Express, 
and Gail Zannon, a resident in the 400 block of State Street, spoke in support of the 
suspension recommended by the Police Department.  The primary concerns expressed 
by the members of the public were the general failure of Whiskey Richards to adhere to 
dance permit conditions, and the noise from Whiskey Richards being arguably louder 
than other nightclub premises closer to the concerned establishments. 
 
Following a lengthy discussion, which included confirmation from multiple SBPD reports 
that Whiskey Richards staff was notified at the time citations were issued, a motion to 
suspend the permit for 30 days was made but was not seconded.  The Commission 
then voted 3 to 1 to suspend the Whiskey Richards nightclub dance permit for a period 
of 60 days, effective immediately.   
 
Additionally, the Commission voted 3 to 1 to approve the Police Department’s 
subsequent recommendation as written: “...Within the 12-month period following the end 
of the suspension, should a citation be issued for a violation of the dance permit or 
dance ordinance, or for a minor discovered on premise, or for any drug-related offense 
in which a patron is observed by SBPD officers to be selling or using narcotics or 
marijuana within the premise, Whiskey Richards’ Nightclub Dance Permit will be 
brought before the Fire and Police Commission no later than the next annual review 
with a recommendation that the Nightclub Dance Permit be permanently revoked.” 
 
On April 11, 2013, Chief of Police Camerino Sanchez issued a letter to Bill Clayton 
notifying him that due to the time it would take to schedule the appeal before Council, 
both he and City Administrator’s office agreed to stay the Commission’s decision until 
the appeal can be heard by City Council.  (See Attachment 3) 
 
Appellants’ Position: 
 
On April 4, 2013, Applicant, owner Bill Clayton, filed an appeal protesting the 
suspension imposed by the Commission.  In summary, the appellant appealed on the 
basis of the following allegations: 

• The Commission did not make any written findings nor have adequate evidence 
to support the suspension. 

• Police Department staff presented an incorrect number of violations to the 
Commission. 

• ABC has only recognized one citation in the time period in question. 
• Whiskey Richards’ staff is trained to recognize fake IDs. 
• No nightclub premise can guarantee that minors will not successfully use false 

IDs to gain access to the premise and/or consume alcohol. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Fire And Police Commission’s Sixty (60 Day Suspension Of the Nightclub 
Dance Permit For Whiskey Richards  
May 14, 2013 
Page 6 

 

Staff’s Position: 
 
In addition to holding a Nightclub Dance Permit issued by the City of Santa Barbara, 
Whiskey Richards, located at 435 State Street, is also licensed by the California 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control with a Type 48 liquor license, (“Bar or Night 
Club”).  Therefore, no one under the age of 21 years is permitted to enter the premise at 
any time.  However, for the two-year period in which the premise’s two most recent 
Nightclub Dance Permits were valid, from January 31, 2011 through January 31, 2013, 
a review of crime statistics for Whiskey Richards reveals not only multiple citations for 
illegal use of narcotics and or marijuana at the premise, but also multiple citations 
issued to minors on premise. 
 
At various times throughout 2011 and 2012, the Santa Barbara Police Department 
attempted to mitigate the premise’s problem areas by using progressive measures as 
suggested by the Penalty Matrix.  Those measures included verbal warnings to Whiskey 
Richards staff, management, and owner; the imposition of additional conditions relating 
to premise security and staff training; written notice of the Police Department’s intention 
to seek suspension or revocation for any further citations issued for minors and/or drug 
use on premise; and an invitation for the owner to take part in an “intervention meeting” 
involving Whiskey Richards representatives, Police Department staff, a Fire and Police 
Commissioner, and a member of the Bar and Restaurant Committee to identify ways to 
prevent future violations.  Bill Clayton opted not to accept the offer of the intervention 
meeting. 
 
The actions of the Fire and Police Commission to suspend the Whiskey Richards dance 
permit are appropriate in light of the multiple  steps taken to curb the citations at the 
premise, culminating with the letter issued to the applicant by the Santa Barbara Police 
Department on April 25, 2012 stating in part: “... because the above citations indicate a 
concerning trend at your nightclub, should there be one more citation for drugs and/or 
patrons under the age of 21 years on premise within the next year, your Nightclub 
Dance Permit will be brought before the Fire and Police Commission with the 
recommendation that it be suspended and/or revoked.”  Following issuance of that 
letter, there were no fewer than 5 citations issued for the named offenses within the 
remaining 9-month period of validity of the permit (see the above list of relevant 
citations).   
 
In Bill Clayton’s appeal letter to Council, although he  critiques the number of citations 
represented  by the Police Department, he nonetheless acknowledges that there were 
multiple applicable citations during the review period, stating “In truth, there were only 
three citations issued for minors on premise in the subject period, which is a 25% 
reduction from the previous review period.”  This  number (3)  is still three times the 
number listed in the letter issued that  warned Whiskey Richards that even one more 
citation for minors on premise would result in potential suspension and/or revocation of 
the premise dance permit. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Fire And Police Commission’s Sixty (60 Day Suspension Of the Nightclub 
Dance Permit For Whiskey Richards  
May 14, 2013 
Page 7 

 

Bill Clayton further argues (in his appeal letter) that because the California Department 
of Alcoholic Beverage only penalized the premise for one violation in the relevant time 
frame, the City should narrow its focus to only that one violation in making its decision.  
However, it is important to note that the Santa Barbara Police Department has authority 
to take corrective action for a variety of issues and concerns within the City that fall 
outside the purview, authority, or concern of ABC.  Specific to the issue at hand is the 
fact that the City’s dance ordinance allows the City local control and regulation of 
nightclubs through the issuance of dance permits.  As a separate entity, the State 
regulates all establishments holding liquor licenses issued by the California Department 
of Alcoholic Beverage Control.  Premises holding both a dance permit and liquor license 
must therefore comply with the laws, terms and conditions of both the City and State 
agencies.  The letter sent to Mr. Clayton by the City, which notified him  of the City’s 
position on future violations at the premise, and warning of the action that would be 
sought with continued violations, was applicable only to the City-issued dance permit.  
The 60-day suspension imposed by the Commission does not affect the premise’s 
State-issued ABC liquor license. Therefore, this argument that the City is restricted by 
the actions of the ABC is improper. 
 
In the appeal letter, the appellant asserts that Municipal Code §5.20.150 Grounds for 
Suspension or Revocation, subsection (E)(3), which pertains to ABC violations, should 
be considered for this suspension.  However, subsection (E)(1) allows for suspension or 
revocation when “...one or more of the following circumstances has occurred with 
respect to the operation of the establishment holding the dance permit: 
(1)  That the Permittee has allowed repeated violations of any provision of this Chapter, 
the Municipal Code, or any statute, ordinance, or regulation relating to his or her 
permitted business activity to occur.” 
 
Although the Police Department received no reports by security staff at Whiskey 
Richards notifying the Police Department of minors attempting to use fake IDs at the 
premise within the two-year period from January 2011 through January 2013, the 
applicant states in his appeal letter that Whiskey Richards staff has recently “turned 
over” up to seven confiscated IDs to the Police Department’s Nightlife Enforcement 
Team.  (Of the seven listed, only three are applicable to the period in question, through 
January 31, 2013.)  While this would appear to be conflicting information, it isn’t.  To 
clarify: the Police Department statistics are based on incidents in which officers are 
called to the scene of a premise where the minor attempting to use false identification is 
present or nearby.  In these instances officers are able to make contact with the minor, 
confirm circumstances, and, when warranted, cite the minor.  A report is generated for 
each such proactive incident, and the report reflects positively on the premise.  There 
are no records of any such reports in the 2-year period of review at Whiskey Richards.   
 
However, sometimes nightclub staff take it upon themselves to confiscate false IDs, but 
do not notify the Police Department immediately.  Later, when the officers happen to 
visit or pass the premise, staff will turn the confiscated ID’s over to the Police.  In these 
instances the IDs are booked as property and no crime report is created because no 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of The Fire And Police Commission’s Sixty (60 Day Suspension Of the Nightclub 
Dance Permit For Whiskey Richards  
May 14, 2013 
Page 8 

 

officers were present when the incidents occurred.  While the Police Department does 
not dispute the applicant’s assertion that Whiskey Richards staff may have confiscated 
three IDs and later turned them over to Police Officers, the Police Department has no 
records of Whiskey Richards staff contacting officers to report a minor currently in the 
act of attempting to use a false ID to gain entry into the premise. 
 
Finally, although bone fide identification (i.e. the valid identification of a person other 
than the minor attempting to use it for entry into the nightclub) may have been used in 
some of the incidents listed in the crime statistics for Whiskey Richards, the physical 
differences between the minor presenting the ID and the photograph on the 
identification and/or physical descriptors have been so different as to be immediately 
distinguished as two separate people by those well-trained to recognize false 
identification.  This fact is substantiated by reports noting that officers and/or staff at 
other nightclubs were able to determine that the identification presented did not belong 
to the person presenting the ID.  Unfortunately, even after the additional condition 
requiring mandatory training for Whiskey Richards security staff was imposed by the 
Police Department, a number of minors were still able to gain access into the premise.  
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Council deny the appeal and uphold the decision of the Fire 
and Police Commission to suspend the Whiskey Richards Nightclub Dance Permit for a 
total period of 60 days, the remainder of which is 46 days. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter by appellant Bill Clayton  

2. Dance Permit Penalty Matrix 
3. Letter from Chief Sanchez to Bill Clayton staying 

suspension. 
 
PREPARED BY: Kenneth Kushner, Police Sergeant 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 















06/06/07 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 

Dance Permit Penalty Matrix 
VIOLATIONS 

 

Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code Violations 

ABC Violations 
(Business & Professions Code) Miscellaneous Violations 

 Noncompliance with Fire 
Code, including 
overcrowding (Uniform 
Fire Code) 

 Noncompliance with Noise 
Ordinance (SBMC Chapter 
9.16) 

 Noncompliance with 
Dance Ordinance (SBMC 
Chapter 5.20) 

 Serving minors 
 Minors on premises 
 Serving intoxicated patrons 
 Other violations of B&P 

statutes, regulations, or 
conditions of ABC permit 

 Misdemeanor or felony 
convictions related to the 
operation and management 
of a dance establishment 

 

 
 

PENALTIES AND REPERCUSSIONS 
 

1st Violation - Verbal Warning 
2nd Violation - Written reprimand and/or 

- Intervention meeting with interested parties 
3rd Violation - Written reprimand, and/or 

- “Intervention” meeting with interested parties 
or 

- Fire & Police Commission Review 
 Imposition of special conditions, and/or 
 Suspension up to 15 days 

4th Violation - Fire & Police Commission Review 
 Imposition of special conditions, and/or 
 Suspension up to 30 days 

5th Violation - Fire & Police Commission Review 
 Imposition of special conditions, and/or 
 Suspension up to 6 months, and/or 
 Revocation 

 
• The above lists are not exhaustive and are to be regarded as guidelines.  The Fire and 

Police Commission has the discretion to review any/all incidents and take appropriate 
action to ensure the public’s health, safety, and welfare.  

• In assessing penalties and repercussions of violations, penalties imposed by other 
regulatory agencies, including fine(s), suspension(s), or revocations(s) will be considered. 

• Only violations that result in a final disposition including a conviction, a plea of nolo 
contendere, civil compromise, or administrative action are to be considered violations. 

• An “intervention” meeting shall consist of:  dance permittee, Police Department 
representatives, including the Nightlife Enforcement Team Sergeant, a Fire and Police 
Commissioner, and a disinterested member of the Bar and Restaurant Committee.  The 
purpose of this “intervention” is to work with the dance permittee to identify ways to 
prevent future violations and to make the dance permittee aware of the next phases in the 
matrix. 





Agenda Item No.  17 
File Code No.  440.05 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Labor Negotiator 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code Section 54957.6, to consider 
instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager, regarding 
negotiations with the Police Bargaining Unit, Supervisor’s Bargaining Unit, and the 
General Bargaining Unit, and regarding discussions with certain unrepresented 
managers about salaries and fringe benefits. 
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
PREPARED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo López, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  18 

File Code No.  520.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 14, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Request from Mayor Helene Schneider and Councilmember Bendy 

White for a Gang Injunction Informational Update 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council, as requested by Mayor Schneider and Councilmember White, receive an 
overview and update on the gang injunction.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is a memorandum from Mayor Schneider and Councilmember White requesting 
an overview and update on the gang injunction. The staff presentation will include an 
overview of and the basis for initiating the injunction, a description of the intended 
outcome, and an update on where the petition stands in the judicial process.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Memorandum from Mayor Schneider and Councilmember White 

 
PREPARED BY: Marcelo A. López, Assistant City Administrator 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 




	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.PDF
	8.PDF
	9.PDF
	10.PDF
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.DOC
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	25.DOC
	26.DOC
	27.DOC
	28.PDF
	29.DOC
	30.PDF
	31.DOC
	32.PDF
	33.PDF
	34.PDF
	35.DOC
	36.DOC
	37.PDF
	38.DOC
	39.PDF
	40.DOC
	41.DOC
	42.PDF
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	MAY 14, 2013
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS
	1.pdf
	General Fund Revenues
	Property Tax

	General Fund Expenditures
	Enterprise Fund Revenues and Expenses




